This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion, amendment or other change without notice. The Bonds may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted
prior to the time the Preliminary Official Statement is delivered in final form. Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor
shall there be any sale of the Bonds in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or qualification under the applicable securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 10, 2012

NEW ISSUE—BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATINGS: Moody’s: “ " (Insured)
“___ 7 (Enhanced)
“__”(Underlying)
(See Ratings herein)

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, interest on the
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a
specific item of tax preference under §57 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) for purposes of Federal individual
or corporate alternative minimum taxes. The Bonds and interest income therefrom, are free from taxation for purposes of personal income,
corporate net income and personal property taxes within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The Bonds are ““qualified tax-exempt obligations™ for the purposes and effect contemplated by Section 265 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (regarding interest expenses related to tax-exempt income of certain financial institutions).

For further information concerning federal and state tax matters relating to the Bonds, see “Tax Exemption™ herein.

$6,825,000*

Northern Cambria School District
Cambria County, Pennsylvania
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012

Dated: March 27, 2012 Principal Due: September 1, as shown on inside cover
Interest Due: March 1 and September 1 First Interest Payment: September 1, 2012

The General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 (the “Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $6,825,000* will be issued in book-
entry only form in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York. Beneficial ownership of the Bonds may be
acquired in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof only under the book-entry only system maintained by DTC through its
brokers and dealers who are, or act through, DTC Participants. The purchasers of the Bonds will not receive physical delivery of the Bonds.
For so long as any purchaser is the beneficial owner of a Bond, that purchaser must maintain an account with a broker or a dealer who is, or
acts through, a DTC Participant to receive payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. See "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM" herein.
If, under the circumstances described herein, Bonds are ever issued in certificated form, the Bonds will be subject to registration of transfer,
exchange and payment as described herein.

The Bonds are general obligations of the Northern Cambria School District, Cambria County, Pennsylvania (the "School District"),
payable from its tax and other general revenues. The School District has covenanted that it will provide in its budget in each year, and will
appropriate from its general revenues in each such year, the amount of the debt service on the Bonds for such year and will duly and punctually
pay or cause to be paid from the sinking fund established under the Resolution, hereinafter defined, or from any other of its revenues or funds,
the principal of every Bond and the interest thereon on the dates, at the place and in the manner stated in the Bonds, and for such budgeting,
appropriation and payment the School District irrevocably has pledged its full, credit and available taxing power. (See “Security” and “Taxing
Powers of the School District™ infra).

Interest on each of the Bonds is payable initially on September 1, 2012, and thereafter semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of
each year until the maturity date of such Bond. The School District has appointed (the “Paying Agent”), as paying agent, registrar
and sinking fund depository for the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of the
principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, when due for payment, will be made directly to DTC by the Paying Agent,
and DTC will in turn remit such payments to DTC Participants for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. If the use
of the Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds is ever discontinued, the principal of and redemption premium, if any, on each of the Bonds will
be payable, when due, upon surrender of such Bond to the Paying Agent at its corporate trust office in , Pennsylvania (or any
successor paying agent at its designated office(s)) and interest on such Bond will be payable by check and mailed to the person(s) in whose
name(s) such Bond is registered as of the Record Date with respect to the particular interest payment date (See “THE BONDS,” infra).

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used for: (1) the current refunding of the School District’s General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2006; (2)
the current refunding of the School District’s General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2007; and (3) paying the costs and expenses related to the
issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds are an authorized investment for fiduciaries in the Commonwealth pursuant to the Pennsylvania Probate, Estate and
Fiduciaries Code, Act of June 30, 1972, No. 164, P.L. 508, as amended and supplemented.

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be guaranteed under an insurance policy to be issued
concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds by

MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, RATES AND PRICES/YIELDS
As Shown on Inside Front Cover

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice, and subject to the
approving legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Bond Counsel, to be furnished upon delivery of the Bonds.
Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for the School District by Gary A. Jubas, Esquire, of Ebensburg, Pennsylvania, School District
Solicitor. Public Financial Management, Inc., Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, serves as Financial Advisor to the School District in connection with
the issuance of the Bonds. It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through DTC in New York, New York on or about March
27, 2012.

Public Financial Management, Inc.
Financial Advisor to the School District
Dated:

*Estimated, subject to change



$6,825,000*

Northern Cambria School District
Cambria County, Pennsylvania
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012

Dated: March 27, 2012 Principal Due: September 1, as shown below
Interest Due: March 1 and September 1 First Interest Payment: September 1, 2012

MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, RATES AND PRICES/YIELDS

Year of Maturity Principal Maturity Interest Initial Offering Initial Offering
(Sept. 1) Amount Rate Yields Prices

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031

(A portion of the Bonds may be structured as Term Bonds. See "Invitation to Bid".)

*Estimated, subject to change.
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No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the School District to give information or to make any
representations, other than those contained in this Preliminary Official Statement, and if given or made, such other information or
representations must not be relied upon. This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the
solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such
offer, solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been obtained from the School District and from other sources
which are believed to be reliable but the School District does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of information from
sources other than the School District. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice
and neither the delivery of this Preliminary Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create
any implication that there has been no change in any of the information set forth herein since the date hereof.
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$6,825,000*

Northern Cambria School District
Cambria County, Pennsylvania
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012

INTRODUCTION

This Preliminary Official Statement, including the cover and inside cover page hereof, is furnished by the Northern Cambria School
District, Cambria County, Pennsylvania (the “School District”) in connection with the offering of $6,825,000*, aggregate principal amount, of its
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are dated as of March 27, 2012 and are being issued pursuant to a
Resolution of the Board of School Directors of the School District adopted on February 21, 2012 (the “Resolution”), in accordance with the
Local Government Unit Debt Act 53 PA.C.S.A. Section 8001 et seq. (the "Act").

PURPOSE OF THE ISSUE

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to: (1) currently refund the School District’s General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2006, (the “2006
Bonds™), which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $1,990,000; (2) to currently refund the School District’s General
Obligation Bonds, Series of 2007 (the “2007 Bonds™), which are currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $4,645,000 and (3)
to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.

Proceeds of the Bonds, after paying the costs and expenses of issuing the Bonds will be deposited with US Bank, N.A., to redeem the 2006
Bonds and the 2007 Bonds, at a redemption price of 100% of principal amount plus accrued interest, pursuant to the optional redemption
provisions applicable to the 2006 Bonds and 2007 Bonds, on or within 90 days of the issuance date of the Bonds.

Sources and Uses of Bond Proceeds
The following is a summary of the sources and uses of the proceeds from the issuance of the Bonds.

Source of Funds

Tl a o o (o= T PSRRI
Net Original ISSUE PrEMIUM .......cviiiiiiiicieect sttt st sa e bbb e s besre b e ane et
F Yool (0 o L =T =1) SOOI

TOtAl SOUICE OF FUNGS ...ttt ettt et e e e s bt e sateeeteeeeteesateenbesereeesreeans

Use of Funds
Amount Required to Call the 2006 BONS..........ccceiveiiiiiieie et ere e
Amount Required to Call the 2007 BONUS........cceiuerieiiieieiieiie ettt seese e sne e s

COSES OF ISSUANCED ...ttt ettt ettt e st en ettt et e s et et e s eeeeneeee e e en e

TOLAl USE OF FUNGS ...ttt ettt e e ae e st e et e et e e e be e s ateenbeeebeesateenbeeereeesreesaeeanees

Wincludes legal, financial advisor, printing, rating, total bond discount, municipal bond insurance premium, paying agent and miscellaneous
costs.

*Estimated, subject to change.



THE BONDS
Description

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples thereof, will be in the aggregate
principal amount of $6,825,000*, will be dated as of March 27, 2012, and will bear interest at the rates and mature in the amounts and on the
dates set forth on the inside front cover of this Preliminary Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be payable initially on September 1,
2012, and thereafter, semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year until the maturity date of such Bond or, if such Bond is subject to
redemption prior to maturity, until the date fixed for redemption thereof, if payment of the redemption price has been duly made or provided for.

When issued, the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New
York, New York. Purchasers of the Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive any physical delivery of bond certificates, and beneficial
ownership of the Bonds will be evidenced only by book entries. See “BOOK — ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein.

Payment of Principal and Interest

So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the Bonds, payments of principal of, redemption premium, if any,
and interest on the Bonds, when due, are to be made to DTC and all such payments shall be valid and effective to satisfy fully and to discharge
the obligations of the School District with respect to, and to the extent of, principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest so paid.

If the use of the Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds is discontinued for any reason, bond certificates will be issued to the Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds and payment of principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made as described in the
following paragraphs:

The principal of the Bonds, when due upon maturity or upon any earlier redemption, will be paid to the registered owners of the Bonds, or
registered assigns, upon surrender of the Bonds to . (the “Paying Agent”), acting as paying agent, registrar and sinking fund
depository for the Bonds, at its corporate trust office in , Pennsylvania (or to any successor paying agent at its designated office(s)).

Interest on the Bonds will be payable to the registered owner of a Bond from the interest payment date next preceding the date of
registration and authentication of the Bond, unless: (a) such Bond is registered and authenticated as of an interest payment date, in which event
such Bond shall bear interest from said interest payment date, or (b) such Bond is registered and authenticated after a Record Date (hereinafter
defined) and before the next succeeding interest payment date, in which event such Bond shall bear interest from such interest payment date, or
(c) such Bond is registered and authenticated on or prior to the Record Date preceding September 1, 2012, in which event such Bond shall bear
interest from March 27, 2012, or (d) as shown by the records of the Paying Agent, interest on such Bond shall be in default, in which event such
Bond shall bear interest from the date to which interest was last paid on such Bond. Interest on each Bond will be payable by check drawn on the
Paying Agent, which shall be mailed to the registered owner whose name and address shall appear, at the close of business on the fifteenth (15)
day of the calendar month (whether or not a day on which the Paying Agent is open for business) next preceding each interest payment date (the
“Record Date”), on the registration books maintained by the Paying Agent, irrespective of any transfer or exchange of the Bond subsequent to
such Record Date and prior to such interest payment date, unless the School District shall be in default in payment of interest due on such interest
payment date. In the event of any such default, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the person in whose name the Bond is registered at the
close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest established by notice mailed by the Paying Agent to the
registered owners of such Bonds not less than ten (10) days preceding such special record date.

If the date for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking
institutions in the Commonwealth are authorized or required by law or executive order to close, then the date for payment of such principal or
interest shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such banking institutions are
authorized or required to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date established for such
payment.

Transfer, Exchange and Registration of Bonds

Subject to the provisions described below under “Book-Entry Only System,” Bonds are transferable or exchangeable by the registered
owners thereof upon surrender of Bonds to the Paying Agent, accompanied by a written instrument or instruments in form, with instructions, and
with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Paying Agent, duly executed by the registered owner of such Bond or his attorney-in-fact or legal
representative. The Paying Agent shall enter any transfer of ownership of Bonds in the registration books and shall authenticate and deliver at
the earliest practicable time in the name of the transferee or transferees a new fully registered bond or bonds of authorized denominations of the
same series, maturity and interest rate for the aggregate principal amount which the registered owner is entitled to receive. The School District
and the Paying Agent may deem and treat the registered owner of any Bond as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not a Bond shall be
overdue) for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal and interest and for all other purposes, and the School District and
the Paying Agent shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

*Estimated, subject to change



Commonwealth Enforcement of Debt Service Payments

Section 633 of the Pennsylvania Public School Code of 1949, as amended by Act 154 of 1998 (the “Public School Code™), presently
provides that in all cases where the board of school directors of any school district fails to pay or to provide for the payment of any indebtedness
at date of maturity or date of mandatory redemption, or any interest due on such indebtedness on any interest payment date, or, in either event,
upon the date of required deposits to the Sinking Fund, in accordance with the schedule under which the bonds were issued, the Secretary of
Education shall notify such board of school directors of its obligation and shall withhold out of any State appropriation due such school district
an amount equal to the sum of the principal amount maturing or subject to mandatory redemption and interest owing by such school district, and
shall pay over the amount so withheld to the bank or other person acting as Sinking Fund Depository for such bond issue. These withholding
provisions are not part of any contract with the holders of the Bonds, and may be amended or repealed by future legislation.

There can be no assurance, however, that any payments pursuant to this withholding provision will be made by the date on which such
payments are due to the Bondholders.

The effectiveness of Section 633 of the Public School Code may be limited by the application of other withholding provisions contained in
the Public School Code, such as provisions for withholding and paying over of appropriations for payment of unpaid teachers' salaries.
Enforcement may also be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or other laws or equitable principles affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights
generally.

Security

The Bonds will be general obligations of the School District, payable from its tax and other general revenues. The School District has
covenanted that it will provide in its budget for each year, and will appropriate from its general revenues in each such year, the amount of the
debt service on the Bonds for such year, and will duly and punctually pay or cause to be paid from its Sinking Fund, as hereinafter defined, or
any other of its revenues or funds, the principal of each of the Bonds and the interest thereon at the dates and place and in the manner stated on
the Bonds, and for such budgeting, appropriation and payment the School District irrevocably has pledged its full faith, credit and taxing power,
which taxing power includes the power to levy ad valorem taxes on all taxable property within the School District within the limits provided by
law (See “Taxing Powers of the School District)” herein). The Act presently provides for enforcement of debt service payments as hereinafter
described (see “Defaults and Remedies” herein), and the Public School Code presently provides for the withholding and application of subsidies
in the event of failure to pay debt service (see “Commonwealth Enforcement of Debt Service Payments” herein).

Sinking Fund

A sinking fund for the payment of debt service on the Bonds, designated "Sinking Fund, General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012" (the
"Sinking Fund"), has been created under the Resolution and is maintained by the Paying Agent, as Sinking Fund Depository. The School District
shall deposit in the Sinking Fund a sufficient sum, not later than the date when interest and/or principal is to become due on the Bonds, so that on
each payment date the Sinking Fund will contain an amount which, together with any other funds available therein, is sufficient to pay, in full,
interest and/or principal then due on the Bonds.

The Sinking Fund shall be held by the Paying Agent, as Sinking Fund Depository, and invested by the Paying Agent in such securities or
shall be deposited in such funds or accounts as are authorized by the Act, upon direction of the School District. Such deposits and securities
shall be in the name of the School District, but subject to withdrawal or collection only by the Paying Agent, as Sinking Fund Depository, and
such deposits and securities, together with the interest thereon, shall be a part of the Sinking Fund.

The Paying Agent, as Sinking Fund Depository, is authorized without further order from the School District to pay from the Sinking Fund
the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as and when due and payable.

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The information in this section has been obtained from materials provided by DTC for such purpose. The School District (herein
referred to as the “Issuer”) and the Underwriter do not guaranty the accuracy or completeness of such information, and such information is
not to be construed as a representation of the School District or the Underwriter.

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the securities (the "Securities"). The
Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the
Securities, [each] in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. [If, however, the aggregate principal amount
of [any] issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal amount, and an additional
certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.]

DTC the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
"banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System. a "clearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.6 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants")
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deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing
Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is
also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard
& Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More
information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com .

Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the
Securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on
the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial
Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership
interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the
book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's
partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities
with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC
has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Securities: DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by
Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the
Securities for their benefit bas agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to
provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.]

[Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed, DTC's practice is to
determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be redeemed.]

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless authorized by a
Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts Securities are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds
and corresponding detail information from Issuer or Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and
not of DTC, Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of redemption
proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant, to
[Tender/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to transfer the Participant's interest in
the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an
optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct
Participants on DTC's records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.]

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving reasonable notice to
Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to be
printed and delivered.

Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository). In
that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.


http://www.dtcc.com/

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that Issuer believes to be
reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

NEITHER THE ISSUER NOR THE PAYING AGENT WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT, INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON WITH RESPECT TO: (1) THE BONDS;
(2) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT; (3)
THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL
OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR REDEMPTION PRICE OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (4) THE DELIVERY TO
ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY NOTICE WHICH IS
REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE RESOLUTION TO BE GIVEN TO BONDHOLDERS; (5) THE SELECTION
OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS; OR (6)
ANY OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS BONDHOLDER.

The Issuer and the Paying Agent cannot give any assurances that DTC or the Participants will distribute payments of the principal or
redemption price of and interest on the Bonds paid to DTC or its nominee, as the registered owner of the Bonds, or any redemption or other
notices, to the Beneficial Owners or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this
Preliminary Official Statement.

REDEMPTION OF BONDS

Mandatory Redemption

Bidders may elect to structure the issue to include term Bonds, which term Bonds, if selected by the bidder, will be subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemptions prior to maturity, in the years and amounts as shown in the Invitation to Bid, upon payment of 100% of the principal
amount of Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, or upon maturity, as applicable. Term bonds to
be redeemed shall be selected by lot by the Paying Agent.

In lieu of such mandatory redemption, the Paying Agent, on behalf of the School District, may purchase from money in the Sinking Fund,
at a price not to exceed the principal amount plus accrued interest, or the School District may tender to the Paying Agent, all or part of the Bonds
subject to being drawn for redemption in any such year.

Optional Redemption

The Bonds stated to mature on or after September 1, 2017, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the School
District, as a whole, on, March 1, 2017, or on any date thereafter, or from time to time, in part (and if in part, of any order of maturity as selected
by the School District and within a maturity by lot), in either case upon payment of a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of such
Bonds, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Notice of Redemption

Notice of any redemption shall be given by depositing a copy of the redemption notice by first class mail not less than thirty (30) days nor
more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption addressed to each of the registered owners of Bonds to be redeemed, in whole or
in part, at the addresses shown on the registration books; provided, however, that failure to give such notice by mailing, or any defect therein or
in the mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for redemption of other Bonds called for redemption as to which proper
notice has been given.

On the date designated for redemption, notice having been provided as aforesaid, and money for payment of the principal and accrued
interest being held by the Paying Agent, interest on the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and such Bonds
or portions thereof shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under the Resolution, and registered owners of such Bonds or portions
thereof so called for redemption shall have no rights with respect to such Bonds, except to receive payment of the principal of and accrued
interest on such Bonds to the date fixed for redemption.

Manner of Redemption

If a Bond is of a denomination larger than $5,000, a portion of such Bond may be redeemed. For the purposes of redemption, a Bond shall
be treated as representing that number of Bonds which is obtained by dividing the principal amount thereof by $5,000, each $5,000 portion of
such Bond being subject to redemption. In the case of partial redemption of a Bond, payment of the redemption price shall be made only upon
surrender of such Bond in exchange for Bonds of authorized denominations in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of
the principal amount thereof.

If the redemption date for any Bonds shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for payment of the principal, premium, if any,
and interest upon such redemption shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which such
banking institutions are authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the nominal date of
redemption.



THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Introduction

The School District is comprised of the Boroughs of Northern Cambria and the Townships of Barr and Susquehanna encompassing a land
area of 63.8 square miles. The School District is located in the northwestern portion of Cambria County is approximately 35 miles north of the
City of Johnstown, Pennsylvania, and 35 miles northwest of the City of Altoona, Pennsylvania. The 2010 population of the School District was
7,898.
Administration

The School District is governed by a nine-member Board of School Directors (the "School Board"), elected for four-year terms. The
Superintendent is the chief administrative officer of the School District, with overall responsibility for the entire educational program. The
Business Administrator, under the supervision of the Superintendent, is responsible for all fiscal and budgetary affairs. Both of these officials are
appointed by the School Board.
School Facilities

The School District presently operates an elementary/middle school and a high school all as described on the following table.

TABLE 1
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT FACILITIES
Original Addition Number Rated
Construction Renovation of Pupil 2011-12
Building Date Date Grades Classrooms Capacity Enrollment
Elementary/Middle:
Northern Cambria Elementary/Middle 1975 2006 K-8 40 1400 633
Secondary:
Northern Cambria High 1963 1993 9-12 26 853 551

Source: School District Officials.

Enroliment Trends
The following Table 2 presents recent trends in school enrollment and projections of enroliments.

TABLE 2
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT TRENDS

Actual Enrollments Projected Enroliments
School School
Year Elementary Secondary Total Year Elementary Secondary Total
2007-08 613 595 1,208 2012-13 644 565 1,209
2008-09 626 575 1,201 2013-14 644 565 1,209
2009-10 624 577 1,201 2014-15 644 565 1,209
2010-11 644 565 1,209 2015-16 644 565 1,209
2011-12 633 551 1,184 2016-17 644 565 1,209

Source: School District Officials.



SCHOOL DISTRICT FINANCES
Introduction

The School District budgets and expends funds according to procedures mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education. An
annual operating budget is prepared by the Superintendent and Business Administrator and submitted to the School Board for approval prior to
the beginning of the fiscal year on July 1.

Financial Reporting

The School District keeps its books and prepares its financial reports according to a modified accrual basis. Major accrual items are
payroll, payroll taxes and pension fund contributions payable, delinquent taxes receivable, loans receivable from other funds, and revenues
receivable from other governmental units. Its financial statements are audited by an independent certified public accountant, as required by State
law. Robert A. Shaffer, CPA, of Johnstown, Pennsylvania, serves as the School District’s Auditor.

Budgeting Process in School Districts under the 2006 Taxpayer Relief Act

In General. School districts budget and expend funds according to procedures mandated by the Pennsylvania Department of Education.
An annual operating budget is prepared by school district administrative officials on a uniform form furnished by such Department and submitted
to the board of school directors for approval prior to the beginning of the fiscal year on July 1.

Procedures for Adoption of the Annual Budget. Under the Taxpayer Relief Act, all school districts of the first class A, second class, third
class and fourth class (except as described below) must adopt a preliminary budget proposal (which must include estimated revenues and
expenditures and proposed tax rates) no later than 90 days prior to the date of the election immediately preceding the fiscal year. The preliminary
budget proposal must be printed and made available for public inspection at least 20 days prior to its adoption; the board of school directors may
hold a public hearing on the budget; and the board must give at least 10 days’ public notice of its intent to adopt the final budget.

If the adopted preliminary budget includes an increase in the rate of any tax levy, the preliminary budget must be submitted to the
Pennsylvania Department of Education (PDE) no later than 85 days prior to the date of the election immediately preceding the fiscal year. PDE
is to compare the proposed percentage increase in the rate of any tax with the school district’s Index (see “The Taxpayer Relief Act” herein)
and within 10 days, but not later than 75 days prior to the upcoming election, inform the school district whether the proposed percentage increase
is less than or equal to the Index. If PDE determines that a proposed tax increase will exceed the Index, the school district must reduce the
proposed tax increase, seek voter approval for the tax increase at the upcoming election, or seek approval to utilize one of the referendum
exceptions authorized under The Taxpayer Relief Act.

With respect to the utilization of any of the Taxpayer Relief Act referendum exceptions for which PDE approval is required (see “The
Taxpayer Relief Act” herein), the school district must publish notice of its intent to seek PDE approval not less than one week before submitting
its request for approval to PDE and, if PDE determines to schedule a public hearing on the request, a notice of the date, time and place of such
hearing. PDE is required by the Taxpayer Relief Act to rule on the school district’s request and inform the school district of its decision no later
than 55 days prior to the upcoming election so that, if PDE denies the school district’s request, the school district may submit a referendum
question to the local election officials at least 50 days before the upcoming election, if it so chooses.

If a school district seeks voter approval to increase taxes at a rate higher than the applicable Index, whether or not it first seeks approval to
utilize one of the referendum exceptions available under the Taxpayer Relief Act, and the referendum question is not approved by a majority of
the voters voting on the question, the board of school directors may not approve an increase in the tax rate greater than the applicable Index.

Simplified Procedures in Certain Cases. The above budgetary procedures will not apply to a school district if the board of school directors
adopts a resolution no later than 110 days prior to the election immediately preceding the upcoming fiscal year declaring that it will not increase
any tax at a rate that exceeds the Index and that a tax increase at or below the rate of the Index will be sufficient to balance its budget. In that
case, the Taxpayer Relief Act requires only that the proposed annual budget be prepared at least 30 days, and made available for public
inspection at least 20 days, prior to its adoption, and that at least ten (10) days’ public notice be given of the board’s intent to adopt the annual
budget. No referendum exceptions are available to a school district adopting such a resolution.

Summary and Discussion of Financial Results

A summary of General Fund balance sheet and changes in fund balances is presented in Tables 3 and 4 which follow. Table 5 shows
revenues and expenditures for the past 5 years and budgeted 2011-12 as adopted June 21, 2011. The 2011-12 budget projects revenues of
$15,142,567 and expenditures of $15,860,000, which includes a budgetary reserve of $100,000.



TABLE 3

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF COMPARATIVE GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
(Years Ending June 30)

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents...................... $1,336,233 $1,400,316 $1,713,680 $1,647,055 $2,044,989
INVESIMENTS......oviieieicece e 313,477 327,573 331,836 664 665
Taxes Receivable.......cccccooeviiviviviineen, 628,140 0 0 0 0
Due Other GOVN'tS. ....coccveveiveeieieicreenae. 566,907 452,777 463,764 984,290 957,737
Other Receivables.........cccceevviviviieeeeee, 0 57,276 32,673 3,418 33,251
INVENTOTIES ....cviviieieiecte e 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
TOTAL ASSETS $2,859,757 $2,252,942 $2,556,953 $2,650,427 $3,051,642
LIABILITIES
Due from Other FUNDS......c.ccoeeveeveeene. $26,624 $19,494 $92,397 $54,043 $110,802
Accounts Payable .........ccccoceovreiirnnninnne 217,251 132,543 151,888 230,536 376,681
Accrued Salaries and Benefits................. 567,234 557,968 512,017 470,344 724,487
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings..... 628,140 64,070 12,068 875 36,257
TOTAL LIABILITIES........cccoeveierenee $1,439,249 $774,075 $768,370 $755,798 $1,248,227
FUND EQUITIES
Nonspendable Fund Balance $0 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
Unassigned Fund Balance ....................... 1,420,508 1,463,867 1,773,583 1,879,629 1,788,415
TOTAL FUND EQUITIES.............c....... $1,420,508 $1,478,867 $1,788,583 $1,894,629 $1,803,415
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITIES........ccccoeeveenee $2,859,757 $2,252,942 $2,556,953 $2,650,427 $3,051,642
Source: School District Annual Financial Reports.

TABLE 4
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL FUND
SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE*
Actual Budget
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 @

Beginning Fund Balance $1,433,431 $1,420,507 $1,478,866 $1,788,583 $1,894,630 $1,803,416
Revenues over (under) Expenditure (12,924) 168,031 309,717 106,048 (91,214) (717,433)
Chg In Inv/RS Equity/Prior Year Adj. 0 (109,672) 0 0 0 0
Ending Fund Balance $1,420,507 $1,478,866 $1,788,583 $1,894,630 $1,803,416 $1,085,983

*Totals may not add due to rounding.
@ Budget, as of June 21, 2011.

Source: School District Annual Financial Reports and Budget.

Revenue

The School District received $16,337,957 in revenue in 2010-11, and has projected budgeted revenue of $15,142,567 in 2011-12. Local
sources decreased as a share of total revenue in the past five years from 20.9 percent in 2006-07 to 20.1 percent in 2010-11. Revenue from
Commonwealth sources decreased from 74.8 percent in 2006-07 to 66.2 percent in 2010-11. Federal sources increased as a share of total
revenue from 4.4 percent to 13.7 percent during this period.



TABLE 5
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF SCHOOL DISTRICT GENERAL FUND

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES*
(Years Ending June 30)

REVENUE: Actual Budget
Local Sources: 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012®
Real EState......cvviieeeeeeeee e $1,856,309 $2,000,509 $1,794,336 $1,807,570 $2,043,788 $2,041,074
Total Act 511 Taxes .. 550,644 562,244 510,223 646,289 599,907 580,000
Per Capita.......ccovvne. 20,007 20,247 19,573 19,231 19,786 23,000
Public Utility TaXeS....ccccoerverrrirrrernereeeiinnnnns 4,129 3,905 3,507 3,917 3,632 3,632
Payment in Lieu of Taxes.......c.cccovvvrverivennnnes 116 116 116 116 116 116
Delinquent Taxes............... 195,004 199,980 208,670 197,888 253,148 228,000
Earnings from Investments..................... 69,282 74,677 28,947 3,900 9,743 24,550
State Rev.Rec'd-Other Intermediary Srcs. .. 15,032 29,047 52,113 0 0 0
Fed. Rev.Rec'd-Other PA Schs. .............. 225,167 237,748 224,412 410,074 284,834 232,000
TUIION oo 95,182 77,111 40,365 76,515 7,375 38,000
RENEAIS ... 0 653 0 487 0 0
Revenue from Community Services................... 0 10,000 10,000 0 0 0
All Other Local Sources Not Specified 0 415 13,334 300 43,854 0
Refund of Prior Years' Expenditures ... 0 11,166 12,383 323 9,731 0
Other SOUrces ........covevvvevveevveennns 15,201 5,826 7,145 7,818 400 68,067
Total LOCal......cceiiiieieiceeeee e $3,046,072 $3,233,645 $2,925,126 $3,174,428 $3,276,313 $3,238,439
State Sources:

Instructional SUbSIAY .........ccccereiiccrriiienns $7,923,203 $8,127,215 $8,370,612 $7,634,544 $7,239,330 $7,947,745
Charter SChOOIS ........cccoeveveveeiiiieeeeen 10,341 7,722 24,715 37,249 38,684 0
Alternative Education 0 2,109 0 1,713 0 0
Special Education...... 703,554 726,691 742,064 804,768 829,076 747,682
Transportation ..........c.ccecceeeenenn. 913,631 974,978 1,013,039 1,009,763 1,009,792 1,034,187
Rentals and Sinking Fund Payments 439,851 319,688 572,460 436,944 436,916 437,206
Health SErvices.......covvvveveveveceeiinas 23,892 25,328 25,284 24,979 24,909 24,797
State Property Tax Reduction Allocation .......... 0 0 313,912 314,447 314,898 314,408
Homebound inStruction ...........cccoeevevveeieiieenienns 1,576 536 491 0 0 0
Extra grants.................... 1,803 0 1,705 0 0 0
PA Accountability Grant ... 246,193 258,003 254,649 254,649 238,795 0
Revenue for Social Security.. 276,506 285,899 291,408 301,283 295,312 281,950
Revenue for Retirement..... 338,745 202,882 209,767 203,769 244,778 314,993
Pre-K Counts .......cocveveveeiiieiereeeeenns 0 0 117,000 117,000 117,000 117,000
Additional Grants Not Listed Elsewhere............ 0 0 9,000 0 0 0
OthEF . 0 0 0 0 0 35,000
Education Assistance Program . 33,613 33,613 24,882 29,926 30,378 20,000
Total State SOUICES........cceveereiiirieieeeereenns $10,912,908 $10,964,664 $11,970,988 $11,171,035 $10,819,869 $11,274,968
Federal Sources:

Total Federal SOUICES ........cccoveveeeeeeeeieieine $630,340 $657,786 $635,151 $1,985,739 $2,241,775 $629,160
Other Sources:

Total Other Sources $5,005 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
TOTAL REVENUE.........ccooviiiiieeeeeeeenns $14,594,325 $14,861,095 $15,531,265 $16,331,202 $16,337,957 $15,142,567
EXPENDITURES:

INSETUCHION ..o $8,744,899 $8,814,450 $9,373,428 $9,792,240 $9,975,155 $9,464,312
Pupil Personnel....... 474,598 432,758 490,945 508,487 568,398 536,073
Instructional Staff ... 343,950 361,199 363,629 578,931 489,053 362,254
Administration.... 748,387 767,448 678,019 719,302 866,684 768,616
Pupil Health ... 191,772 205,274 215,022 220,619 234,969 230,146
BUSINESS...vevveieieieieiereee s 184,303 189,340 204,764 228,458 207,232 235,281
Operation and Maintenance of Plant Services... 1,162,281 1,204,848 1,256,430 1,396,395 1,329,110 1,364,589
Student Transportation 1,093,158 1,104,877 1,094,104 1,108,566 1,181,217 1,146,210
Central .......covvvnnen. 243,455 232,446 239,162 218,475 158,991 297,957
Other SUppOrt Services.........c.ccovvvvevenine 2,168 2,166 2,141 2,546 3,029 0
Operation of Noninstructional Services.. 329,888 341,833 334,628 380,585 344,108 460,666
Debt SErVICe ... 982,490 997,601 957,376 959,628 960,772 793,896
Refund of Prior Year Receipts.. 81,927 2,629 11,900 10,922 7,453 0
Fund Transfers 23,973 35,000 0 100,000 103,000 100,000
Short Term Borrowing -- Interests and Costs .... 0 1,195 0 0 0 0
Budgetary RESErVe.........ccovevverivciriciieeieins 0 0 0 0 0 100,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ... $14,607,249 $14,693,064 $15,221,548 $16,225,154 $16,429,171 $15,860,000
SURPLUS OF REVENUES OVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES .......ccocovviriiiinnas ($12,924) $168,031 $309,717 $106,048 ($91,214) ($717,433)

*Totals may not add due to rounding.
@ Budget, as of June 21, 2011.

Source: School District Annual Financial Reports and Budget.



TAXING POWERS OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Subject to certain limitations imposed by the Taxpayer Relief Act, Act No. 1 of the Special Session of 2006, as amended (see “The Taxpayer
Relief Act (Act 1) herein), the School District is empowered by the School Code and other statutes to levy the following taxes:

1. A basic annual tax on all real property taxable for school purposes, not to exceed 25 mills on each dollar of assessed valuation, to be
used for general school purposes.

2. An unlimited ad valorem tax on the property taxable for school purposes to provide funds:

a. for minimum salaries and increments of the teaching and supervisory staff;
b. to pay rentals due any municipality authority or non-profit corporation or due the State Public School Building Authority;

c. to pay interest and principal on any indebtedness incurred pursuant to the Local Government Unit Debt Act, or any prior or
subsequent act governing the incurrence of indebtedness of the school district; and

d. to pay for the amortization of a bond or note issue which provided a school building prior to the first Monday of July, 1959.
3. An annual per capita tax on each resident or inhabitant over 18 years of age of not less than $1.00 and not more than $10.00.

4. Additional taxes subject to division with other political subdivisions authorized to levy similar taxes on the same person, subject,
business, transaction or privilege, under Act No. 511, enacted December 31, 1965, as amended (“The Local Tax Enabling Act”).
These taxes, which may include, among others, an additional per capita tax, a wage and other earned income tax, a real estate transfer
tax, a gross receipts tax, a local services tax and an occupation tax, shall not exceed, in the aggregate, an amount equal to the product
of the market valuation of real estate in the School District (as certified by the State Tax Equalization Board of the Commonwealth —
“STEB”) multiplied by twelve mills. All local taxing authorities are required by the Local Tax Enabling Act to exempt disabled
veterans and members of the armed forces reserve who are called to active duty at any time during the tax year from any local services
tax and to exempt from any local services tax levied at a rate in excess of $10 those persons whose total income and net profits from all
sources within the political subdivision is less than $12,000 for the tax year. The Local Tax Enabling Act also authorizes, but does not
require, taxing authorities to exempt from per capita, occupation, and earned income taxes and any local services tax levied at a rate of
$10 or less per year, any person whose total income from all sources is less than $12,000 per year.

The Taxpayer Relief Act (Act 1)

Under Pennsylvania Act No. 1 of the Special Session of 2006, as amended by Act 25 of 2011 (“The Taxpayer Tax Relief Act” or “Act 1”),
a school district may not, in fiscal year 2007-2008 or in any subsequent fiscal year, levy any tax for the support of the public schools which was
not levied in the 2006-2007 fiscal year, raise the rate of any earned income and net profits tax if already imposed under the authority of the Local
Tax Enabling Act (Act 511), or increase the rate of any tax for school purposes by more than the Index (defined below), unless in each case either
(a) such increase is approved by the voters in the school district at a public referendum or (b) one of the exceptions summarized below is
applicable and the use of such exception is approved by the Pennsylvania Department of Education (PDE):

1. to pay interest and principal on indebtedness incurred (i) prior to September 4, 2004, in the case of a school district which
had elected to become subject to the provisions of the prior Homeowner Tax Relief Act, Act 72 of 2004, or (ii) prior to June
27, 2006, in the case of a school district which had not elected to become subject to Act 72 of 2004; to pay interest and
principal on any indebtedness approved by the voters at referendum (electoral debt); and to pay interest and principal on debt
refunding or refinancing debt for which one of the above exceptions is permitted, as long as the refunding or refinancing
incurs no additional debt other than for costs and expenses related to the refunding or refinancing and the funding of
appropriate debt service reserves;

2. to pay costs incurred in providing special education programs and services to students with disabilities, under specified
circumstances; and

3. to make payments into the State Public School Employees’ Retirement System when the increase in the estimated payments
between the current year and the upcoming year is greater than the Index, as determined by PDE in accordance with the
provisions of Act 1.

Any revenue derived from an increase in the rate of any tax allowed under the exception numbered 1 above may not exceed the anticipated
dollar amount of the expenditure, and any revenue derived from an increase in the rate of any tax allowed pursuant to any other exception
enumerated above may not exceed the rate increase required, as determined by PDE. If a school district’s petition or request to increase taxes by
more than the Index pursuant to one or more of the allowable exceptions is not approved, the school district may submit the proposed tax
increase to a referendum.

The Index (to be determined and reported by PDE by September of each year for application to the following fiscal year) is the average of
the percentage increase in the statewide average weekly wage, as determined by the State Department of Labor and Industry for the preceding
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calendar year, and the employment cost index for elementary and secondary schools, as reported by the federal Bureau of Labor Statistics for the
preceding 12-month period beginning July 1 and ending June 30. If and when a school district has a Market Value/Income Aid Ratio greater
than 0.40 for the prior school year, however, the Index is adjusted upward by multiplying the unadjusted Index by the sum of 0.75 and such Aid
Ratio.

The Act 1 Index applicable to the School District in the current and prior fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Index
2008-09 6.6%
2009-10 6.2%
2010-11 4.4%
2011-12 2.1%
2012-13 2.6%

In accordance with Act 1, the School District put a referendum question on the ballot at the May, 15, 2007, primary election seeking voter
approval to levy (or increase the rate of) an earned income and net profits tax (“EIT”) or a personal income tax (“PIT”) and use the proceeds to
reduce local real estate taxes by a homestead and farmstead exclusion. The referendum was NOT approved by the voters.

A board of school directors may submit, but is not required to submit, a referendum question to the voters at the municipal election
seeking approval to levy or increase the rate of an EIT or impose PIT for the purpose of funding homestead and farmstead exclusions, but the
proposed rate of the EIT or PIT shall not exceed the rate that is required to provide the maximum homestead and farmstead exclusions allowable
under law.

Act 24 of 2001

Act 24 of 2001 of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, which became law on June 22, 2001, authorizes a Board of School Directors to
schedule a public hearing and conduct a ballot referendum on replacing the school district’s occupation tax with an increase in the local earned
income tax. Currently, school districts in Pennsylvania share a 1.0% tax on the annual amount of residents’ wages and other earned income
(which excludes unearned or investment income), with the resident municipality. Under the new law, this tax could be increased by the
percentage necessary to generate revenue equal to what was collected during the preceding year on the occupation tax. The occupation tax is a
flat amount for all employed individuals, or assessed by various trade, occupation and professional titles, regardless of income. The restructured
tax is designed to be revenue neutral to the school district.

Pursuant to statutory authorization and procedure, the School District received voter approval in the November 2002 election to eliminate

the occupation tax and increase the earned income tax rate to cover the revenue shortfall. The School District's occupation tax was eliminated
and the earned income tax rate increased to 1.6% beginning in the 2003-04 fiscal year.
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Legislation Limiting Unreserved Fund Balances

Pennsylvania Act No. 2003-48 (enacted December 23, 2003) prohibits a school district from increasing real property taxes for the school
year 2005-2006 or any subsequent school year, unless the school district has adopted a budget for such school year that includes an estimated
ending unreserved undesignated fund balance which is not more than a specified percentage of the total budgeted expenditures, as set forth

below:

Total Budgeted Expenditures

Less than or equal to $11,999,999
Between $12,000,000 and $12,999,999
Between $13,000,000 and $13,999,999
Between $14,000,000 and $14,999,999
Between $15,000,000 and $15,999,999
Between $16,000,000 and $16,999,999
Between $17,000,000 and $17,999,999
Between $18,000,000 and $18,999,999
Greater than or equal to $19,000,000

as a Percentage of Total Budgeted Expenditures

12.0%
11.5%
11.0%
10.5%
10.0%
9.5%
9.0%
8.5%
8.0%

Estimated Ending Unreserved Undesignated Fund Balance

“Estimated ending unreserved fund balance” is defined in Act 2003-48 as that portion of the fund balance which is appropriable for
expenditure or not legally or otherwise segregated for a specific or tentative future use, projected for the close of the school year for which a
school district’s budget was adopted and held in the general fund accounts of the school district.

Tax Levy Trends

Table 6 shows the recent trend of tax rates levied by the School District. Table 7 shows the comparative trend of real property tax rates for
the School District, the County and the municipalities within the School District.

TABLE 6

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT TAX RATES

Real Real Estate Local Services Wage

Estate Per Capita® Transfer Tax and Income

(mills) $) % ()] %
2007-08 .............. 43.00 10.0 0.5 5.00 0.5
2008-09 .............. 43.00 10.0 0.5 5.00 0.5
2009-10 ........c..... 47.00 10.0 0.5 5.00 0.5
2010-11 ....counene. 47.00 10.0 0.5 5.00 0.5
2011-12 ..., 47.00 10.0 0.5 5.00 0.5
(l)lncludes School Code and Act 511 taxes.
Source: Department of Community and Economic Development- Municipal Statistics

TABLE 7
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE REAL PROPERTY TAX RATES
(Mills on Assessed Value)
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

School DiStrict .....ccvcovvviiiicicce e 43.00 43.00 47.00 47.00 47.00
Barr TOWNShIP ..ccvoveieiiiiiccec e 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Northern Cambria Borough............cccccoeevveieneae 15.00 13.00 14.25 15.47 15.48
Susquehanna Township......c.ccoceeveiviiieseriennnn 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Cambria CoUNtY.........cccoeevvririiriiiiiessieiiae 23.25 26.90 26.90 29.50 29.50

Source: Department of Community and Economic Development- Municipal Statistics
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Real Property Tax

The real property tax (excluding delinquent collections) produced $2,043,788 in 2010-11, approximately 12.5 percent of revenues. The tax
is levied on July 1 of each year. Taxpayers who remit within 60 days receive a 2 percent discount, and those who remit subsequent to 120 days
after July 1 are assessed a 10 percent penalty.

The following tables summarize recent trends of assessed and market valuations of real property and real property tax collection data.

TABLE 8
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT DATA

Market Assessed
Year Value Value Ratio
200607 ...ecveeeeeeeeeeeie e $172,349,900 $53,475,100 31.03%
2007708 ....cveeeeereeeeee et 174,238,300 53,932,920 30.95%
2008-09%.....ceeeeeeeeieeieereeiee e 188,700,473 54,152,020 28.70%
2009-10%.....eeeeeeeeeee e 190,942,523 54,690,350 28.64%
2000-11 oo 200,858,389 55,318,570 27.54%
Compound Average Annual Percentage Change............. 3.11% 0.68%
*Market Value recertified August 22, 2011 - STEB replaced its computer system used to calculate market values.
Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board.
TABLE 9
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY ASSESSMENT DATA BY MUNICIPALITY
2009 2009 2010 2010
Market Assessed Market Assessed
Value* Value Value Value
SChool DiStriCt .....cvovevieceeeesee e $190,942,523 $54,690,350 $200,858,389 $55,318,570
Barr TOWNShIP ...covveeeeerceeees e 66,869,232 16,821,330 71,826,270 17,073,840
Northern Cambria Borough ............ccccoooeiiiinennns 75,418,782 24,870,720 76,312,979 25,066,010
Susquehanna TOWNShIP ......ccccovevrerenenecineeee, 48,654,509 12,998,300 52,719,140 13,178,720
Cambria CouNtY.........ccoovvveeeiieiieieceeeeeen 4,448,515,640 1,169,897,954 4,657,472,705 1,209,892,370
*Market Value recertified August 22, 2011 - STEB replaced its computer system used to calculate market values.
Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board.
TABLE 10
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSESSMENT BY LAND USE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Residential ..........cccooveiinienne $37,947,690 $38,218,310 $38,510,640 $38,858,030 $39,115,020
LOtS. oo 21,900 23,550 70,020 83,420 90,860
Industrial.........cccoovveniiiiciennnn. 922,840 948,490 948,490 948,450 948,430
Commercial ........ccooeeerieinnne, 7,812,240 7,858,450 7,617,160 7,843,150 8,113,960
Agriculture........cocoovvenieennn 6,431,330 6,511,510 6,544,580 6,565,970 6,629,320
Land......cccooveniiinicee s 2,900 5,750 8,760 29,330 41,690
Mineral ... 336,200 366,860 452,370 362,000 379,290
Total ..o $53,475,100 $53,932,920 $54,152,020 $54,690,350 $55,318,570

Source: Pennsylvania State Tax Equalization Board.
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TABLE 11

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY TAX COLLECTION DATA

Total Total

Collections Total Collections

Current as Percent Current as Percent
Year of Total Plus of Total
Flat Collections Adjusted Delinquent Adjusted

Year Billing® (July-June) Flat Billing Collections® Flat Billing
2006-07 ..ooveviveieieiieieseee e $2,084,434 $1,856,309 89.06% $2,044,209 98.07%
2007-08 ....oooveiiriiieeeeee s 2,210,513 2,000,509 90.50% 2,194,291 99.27%
2008-09 .....ooveeeeeee e 2,016,122 1,794,336 89.00% 1,996,791 99.04%
2009-10 .ioviiieiiie e 2,037,238 1,807,570 88.73% 2,002,771 98.31%
2010-11 oo 2,282,345 2,043,788 89.55% 2,290,116 100.34%

Source: School District officials.

WFlat billing plus penalties, less discounts and exonerations.

@Includes delinquent real estate only.

®Beginning in 2008-09 the amount of the Adjusted Flat Billing is reduced by the amount of Homestead/Farmstead Exemptions. The Adjusted
Flat Billing shown excludes the amount payable from the Property Tax and Rent Rebate Program funded pursuant to Act 1 of the
Commonwealth.

The ten largest real property taxpayers, together with 2011-12 assessed values, are shown in Table 12. The aggregate assessed value of
these ten taxpayers totals approximately 3.7 percent of total assessed value.

TABLE 12

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
TEN LARGEST REAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS, 2011-12

2011-12

Owner Property Assessed Value
Inter power/Ahlcon Co-generation Facility 486,960
Maple Coal Company Coal Mining 249,670
KRZ Associates - Giant Eagle Grocery Store 196,440
First Natl Bank of Spangler Bank 192,010
Northern Cambria LLC - retail Sheetz retail store 177,150
Marsico Michelle & Previte William J & J.
Dennis Bi-Lo grocery store 169,800
Previte Anthony c/o Penn Traffic Bi-Lo grocery store 169,780
NCSD c/o Crawford Commons Apartment Complex 150,140
Louis Monborne Transportation Company 140,100
Indiana Hospital Medical services 134,980

Total $2,067,030

Source: School District officials.
Other Taxes

Under Act 511, the School District collected $599,907 in other taxes in 2010-11. Among the taxes authorized by Act 511, the Per Capita
Tax, Local Services Tax, Wage and Income Tax, and the Real Estate Transfer Tax are levied by the School District. The Act 511 limit, equal to
12 mills on the market value of real property, was $2,410,301.

Per Capita Taxes. A tax of $10.00 ($5.00 under Act 511 and $5.00 under the School Code) on each resident or inhabitant over 18 years
old. In 2010-11 the collected portion of this tax was $19,786, or less than one percent of total revenue.
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Local Services Tax. A tax of $5.00 is levied on occupations. In 2010-11, the collected portion of this tax yielded $7,342, or less than one
percent of total revenue.

Wage and Income Tax. A tax of 0.5 percent is levied on the earned income of school district residents. In 2010-11 the collected portion of
this tax was $551,485, or 3.4 percent of total revenue.

Real Estate Transfer. The School District levies a tax of 0.5 percent of the value of real estate transfers. In 2010-11 the collected portion
of this tax yielded $21,294, or less than one percent of total revenue.

Commonwealth Aid to School Districts

Pennsylvania school districts receive financial assistance from the Commonwealth in a number of forms, all subject to statutory provisions
and annual appropriation by the Pennsylvania General Assembly.

The largest subsidy, basic instructional subsidy, is allocated to all school districts based on factors such as: (1) the per pupil market value
of assessable real property in the school district; (2) the per pupil earned income in the school district; (3) the school district's tax effort, as
compared with the tax effort of other school districts in the Commonwealth; and (4) student count. School districts also receive subsidies for
special education, pupil transportation, health service and debt service.

Commonwealth law presently provides that the School District will receive reimbursement from the Commonwealth for a portion of debt
service on the Bonds upon final approval of the Department of Education. Commonwealth reimbursement is based on the “Reimbursable
Percentage” assigned to the Bonds and the School District’s Aid Ratio. The School District officials have estimated that the “Reimbursable
Percentage” of the Bonds will be a maximum of 61.47 percent. The School District Aid Ratio for the 2011-12 school year is currently 81.31
percent. The product of these two factors is 49.98 percent which is the percentage of debt service which will be reimbursed by the
Commonwealth. In future years, this percentage may change as the School District’s Aid Ratio changes, or as a result of future legislation. Aid
Ratio is a function of the market value per weighted average daily membership of the School District relative to that of other school districts of
the Commonwealth.

DEBT AND DEBT LIMITS

Debt Statement

Table 13 which follows shows the principal amount of debt of the School District as of January 26, 2012, including the issuance of the
Bonds.

TABLE 13

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT STATEMENT*
(As of January 26, 2012)

Gross

NONELECTORAL DEBT QOutstanding
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012 (1ast Maturity 2031) .......cccvevveeiiiiriieriesieieee et $6,825,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011 (1ast Maturity 2027) ........ccovevveviiiireierieseieee et 5,545,000
TOTAL NONELECTORAL DEBT $12,370,000
LEASE RENTAL DEBT

TOTAL LEASE RENTAL DEBT ..ottt ittt ettt sttt sbt e bbbt sbe e nns $0
TOTAL PRINCIPAL OF DIRECT DEBT ..ot eiie ittt se e s e aa et e snaa e snaeanteenseesnaaennneenes $12,370,000

*Includes the estimated Bonds offered through this Preliminary Official Statement. Does not include the 2006 Bonds and the 2007 Bonds being
refunded herein.
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Table 14 presents the overlapping indebtedness and debt ratios of the School District. After issuance of the Bonds, the principal of direct
debt of the School District will total $12,370,000. After adjustment for available funds and estimated Commonwealth Aid, the local effort of

direct debt will total $6,187,319.
TABLE 14
NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND DEBT RATIOS*
(As of January 26, 2012)

Local Effort
or Net of
Available Funds

Gross and Estimated
Outstanding State Aid®

DIRECT DEBT

Nonelectoral Debt.... $12,370,000 $6,187,319
Lease RENTAI DEDL........c.coviiiiieiie ittt et b e sbe b s be b e st e sreernens 0 0
TOTAL DIRECT DEBT ...ttt st $12,370,000 $6,187,319
OVERLAPPING DEBT

Cambria County, General OBIGation™® ... 2,229,366 2,229,366
MUNICIPAL DEBL ... 11,931,647 11,931,647
TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT .....ccotiiieiciee ettt sttt $14,161,013 $14,161,013
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT ....cceeiiiiiie et $26,531,013 $20,348,331
DEBT RATIOS

Per Capita (2010) ...cocveieeriieieesiee ettt ettt b et r e $3,359.21 $2,576.39
Percent 2009-10 Assessed Value 47.96% 36.78%
Percent 2009-10 Market ValUB.........ccccvviviiiiiiiiieiii ettt sve e sraens 13.21% 10.13%

*Includes the estimated Bonds offered through this Preliminary Official Statement. Does not include the 2006 Bonds and the 2007 Bonds being

refunded herein.

WGives effect to current appropriations for payment of debt service and expected future Commonwealth Reimbursement of School District
sinking fund payments based on current Aid Ratio. See “Commonwealth Aid to School Districts”. The School District may, at any time, claim a

credit against the gross principal of debt outstanding equal to the amount.
@Pro rata 4.31 percent share of $51,694,185 principal outstanding.
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TABLE 15

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS*

Other
Outstanding
General

Obligation Series of 2012 Total
Year Debt Principal Interest Subtotal Outstanding
2011-12 $200,460
2012-13 450,503
2013-14 449,953
2014-15 452,803
2015-16 453,953
2016-17 449,878
2017-18 456,783
2018-19 454,038
2019-20 454,788
2020-21 449,493
2021-22 453,365
2022-23 451,211
2023-24 453,075
2024-25 453,829
2025-26 453,223
2026-27 451,523
2027-28 454,011
2028-29 0
2029-30 0
2030-31 0
2031-32 0
Total $7,442,884

*Totals may not add due to rounding.

TABLE 16

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
COVERAGE OF DEBT SERVICE AND LEASE RENTAL*

2010-11 CommONWEAIh AIG RECEIVEM. .........iuiiiieiiiieiiie sttt bbbt sb e $10,819,869
2010-11 Debt SErVICe REQUITEMENTS ......iviiiiiieiiitiitesieiee et e ettt e bt sbe st e e e b e seebeebesbe b et esse b eseetaebesbessensesaenentene $960,772
Maximum Future Debt Service Requirements after ISSUANCe Of BONUS.........c.ccovviierieiiieiiiisese e

Coverage 0f 2010-11 Debt SErvice REQUITEMENTS......cc.cviieiiiiiiiieiet ettt sb e b a e te st e b s ensesaensereens 11.26 times

Coverage of Maximum Future Debt Service Requirements after Issuance of BONds ............ccccccevveiviiiiiiieiiiincricnenan,

*Assumes current Commonwealth Aid Ratio.
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Debt Limit and Remaining Borrowing Capacity

The statutory borrowing limit of the School District under the Act is computed as a percentage of the School District's
"Borrowing Base". The "Borrowing Base" is defined as the annual arithmetic average of "Total Revenues" (as defined by the
Act), for the three full fiscal years ended next preceding the date of incurring debt. The School District calculates its present
borrowing base and borrowing capacity as follows:

Total Revenues for 2008-09 $ 14,958,805
Total Revenues for 2009-10 15,894,257
Total Revenues for 2010-11 _ 15,901,040

Total $ 46,754,103

Annual Arithmetic Average (Borrowing Base) $ 15,584,701

Under the Act as presently in effect, new lease rental debt or new nonelectoral debt may not be incurred if the net amount
of such new debt plus all outstanding net nonelectoral debt and net lease rental debt would cause the total net nonelectoral plus
net lease rental debt to exceed 225% of the Borrowing Base. The application of the aforesaid percentage to the School District's
Borrowing Base produces the following product:

Remaining
Legal Net Debt Borrowing
Limit Qutstanding* Capacity
Net Nonelectoral and Lease Rental Debt Limit:
225% of Borrowing Base . $35,065,577 $12,370,000 $22,695,577

*Includes the estimated Bonds described herein, does not reflect credits against gross indebtedness that may be claimed for a
portion of principal of debt estimated to be reimbursed by Commonwealth Aid. Does not include the 2006 Bonds and 2007
Bonds being refunded herein.

Debt Service Requirements

Table 16 presents data on the extent to which Commonwealth Aid provides coverage for debt service and lease rental
requirements.

The School District has never defaulted on the payment of debt service.
Future Financing

The School District does not anticipate issuing additional long-term debt in the near future.
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LABOR RELATIONS

School District Employees

There are presently 167 permanent employees of the School District, including 98 teachers and administrators and 67
support personnel, including secretaries, maintenance employees and teacher’s aides.

The School District's teachers are represented by the Northern Cambria Education Association, an affiliate of the
Pennsylvania State Education Association, under a contract with the School District, which expires on June 30, 2013. The
support staff are represented by the Support Personnel Association PSEA/NEA under a contract, which expires June 30, 2012.

Pension Program

School districts in Pennsylvania are required to participate in a statewide pension program administered by the State Public
School Employees Retirement Board (the “Retirement Board”). All of the School District full-time employees, part-time
employees who work more than 80 days in a school year, and hourly employees who work over 500 hours a year are required to
participate in the program.

Beginning July 1, 1976, certain revisions were made in the pension program. The Retirement Board, previously under the
Department of Education of the Commonwealth, became an independent agency. However, the program is still guaranteed by the
Commonwealth. Currently, each party to the program contributes a fixed percentage of the employee’s salary. Employees
belonging to the Public School Employees Retirement System (“PSERS”) prior to July 22, 1983 contribute 5.25% of their salary,
and employees who joined the PSERS on or after July 22, 1983 contribute 6.25% of their salary. On February 17, 2002,
Governor Ridge signed Act 9 which created a new membership class that sets the employee contribution rate at 7.50% of the
employee’s salary for those employees hired on or after July 1, 2001. Act 9 also provides an option for those employees hired
prior to July 1, 2001 to elect a contribution rate of 6.50%, if they were hired before July 22, 1983, or 7.50% if they were hired on
or after July 22, 1983. Act 120 of 2010 was passed by the General Assembly on November 15 and signed by Governor Rendell
on November 23, 2010. The benefit reductions contained in this legislation will only impact individuals who become new
members of PSERS on or after July 1, 2011. New members will have the option of selecting one of 2 new classes. The members
selecting class T-E will contribute a base rate of 7.5% with “shared risk” contribution levels between 7.5% and 9.5% and a
pension multiplier of 2.0%. Members selecting class T-F will contribute a base rate of 10.3% with shared risk contribution levels
between 10.3% and 12.3% and a pension multiplier or 2.5%. The PSERS Board certified the employer rate, to be paid by the
School District, of 8.22% for the 2010-11 fiscal year (In accordance with Senate Bill 1042 enacted on July 6, 2010, this rate was
recertified at 5.64% for 2010-11 fiscal year). The PSERS Board certified a new employer rate, to be paid by the School District,
of 8.65% for the 2011-12 fiscal year and 12.36% for the 2012-13 fiscal year. According to Act 120 of 2010 the employer
contribution rate is suppressed for future years by using rate caps to keep the rate from rising too high, too fast. The rate caps
limit amount the pension component of the employer contribution rate can increase over the prior year’s rate as follows: FY
2011-12 — not more than 3.0% plus the premium assistance contribution rate; FY 2012-13 — not more than 3.5% plus the
premium assistance contribution rates; and FY 2013-15 — not more than 4.5% plus the premium assistance contribution rate and
thereafter at not more than 4.5%. Both the School District and the Commonwealth are responsible for paying a portion of the
employer’s share. School entities are responsible for paying 100% of the employer share of contributions to PSERS. The
Commonwealth reimburses the employer for one-half the payment for employees. The School District contributions are made on
a quarterly basis and employee contributions are deducted bi-weekly for each paycheck and remitted monthly. Recent School
District pension contributions to PSERS have been as follows:

2006-07 $ 312,599
2007-08 $ 506,556
2008-00 $ 356,832
2000-10 $ 382,124
2000-01 $ 425,181
2011-12 (Budgeted) .. $ 616,140
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The School District is current in all payments. PSERS is the 17th largest defined benefit pension fund in the nation.
PSERS is primarily responsible for administering a defined benefit pension plan for public school employees in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. In the fall of 2010, the PSERS completed its process of publishing financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2010, in compliance with reporting standards established by the Government Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement No. 25 and Statement No. 26. PSERS’ total plan net assets increased by $2.6 billion from $43.2 billion at June 30,
2009 to $45.8 billion at June 30, 2010. This increase was due to net investment income plus member and employer contributions
exceeding the deductions for benefits and administrative expenses. However, despite the increase during the 2010 fiscal year of
PSERS, total plan net assets from June 30, 2008 to June 30, 2009 fell in the amount of $19.5 billion, from $62.7 billion at June
30, 2008 to $43.2 billion. This decrease was due to net investment loss and payment of pension benefits and administrative
expenses which, when combined, exceeded member and employer contributions. The Fund’s complete report is available on the
PSERS website on the Internet: www.psers.state.pa.us.

Source: PSERS Website.
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Effective July 1, 2008, the School District adopted the provisions of GASB Statement Na. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Post Retirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The financial statements reflect a long-term liability
and related expenses of $1,546,566 in total liabilities resulting from the adoption. The School District maintains a single
employer defined benefit plan to provide post retirement healthcare benefits to School District employees who have retire with
30 years of PSERS service or upon superannuation retirement. Such benefits are available to retiree dependents until the retired
employee reaches age 65, provided the retired employee provides payment equal to the premium determined for the purpose of
COBRA. For a full description of the School District’s Postemployment Healthcare Plan, please refer to Appendix C — Audited
Financial Statements — Note 9 herein.

LITIGATION

At the time of settlement, the School Board and the Solicitor will deliver a certificate stating that there is no litigation
pending with respect to the Bonds, the Resolution or the right of the School District to issue said Bonds.

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

In the event of failure of the School District to pay or cause to be paid the interest on or principal of the Bonds, as the same
becomes due and payable, the holders of the Bonds shall be entitled to certain remedies provided by the Act. Among the
remedies, if the failure to pay shall continue for 30 days, holders of the Bonds shall have the right to recover the amount due by
bringing an action in assumpsit in the Court of Common Pleas of the county in which the School District is located. The Act
provides any judgment shall have an appropriate priority upon the funds next coming into the treasury of the School District.
The Act also provides that upon a default of at least 30 days, holders of at least 25 percent of the Bonds may appoint a trustee to
represent them. The Act provides certain other remedies in the event of default, and further qualifies the remedies hereinbefore
described.

TAX MATTERS
State Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the Bonds, and the interest income therefrom, are free from taxation for purposes of
personal income, corporate net income and personal property taxes within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The residence of a holder of a Bond in a state other than Pennsylvania, or being subject to tax in a state other than
Pennsylvania, may result in income or other tax liabilities being imposed by such other state or its political subdivisions based on
the interest or other income from the Bonds.

Federal Income Tax Matters

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions,
interest on the Bonds (including, in the case of Bonds sold at an original issue discount, the difference between the initial
offering price and par) is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that
interest on the Bonds is not a specific item of tax preference under Section 57 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code”) for purposes of Federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.

Original Issue Discount
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The Bonds that mature on through and including (collectively, the "Tax-Exempt Discount Bonds") are
being offered and sold to the public at an original issue discount ("OID") from the amounts payable at their maturity. OID is the
excess of the stated redemption price of a bond at maturity (par) over the price to the public at which a substantial amount of
bonds of the same maturity are sold pursuant to the initial offering. Under the Code, OID on each Tax-Exempt Discount Bond
will accrue over its term and the amount of accretion will be based on the yield to maturity, compounded semi-annually. The
amount of OID that accrues during each semi-annual period will do so ratably within that period on a daily basis. With respect to
an initial purchaser of a Tax-Exempt Discount Bond at its initial offering price, the portion of OID that accrues during the period
that such purchaser owns such Bond is added to the purchaser's tax basis for purposes of determining gain or loss at the maturity,
redemption, sale, or other disposition of that Tax-Exempt Discount Bond and thus, in practical effect, is treated as stated interest,
which is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Holders of Tax-Exempt Discount Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the effect of OID with respect to
their federal tax liability.

Original Issue Premium

The Bonds that mature on (the “Premium Bonds”) were sold at an original issue premium ("OIP”). Under the
Code, OIP is an adjustment to basis and must be amortized. The method of amortization may be the method regularly employed
by the taxpayer if such method is reasonable, or, in all other cases, must be the method prescribed by applicable Treasury
Regulations, which provide that the amortizable bond premium is an amount which bears the same ratio to the OIP as the number
of months in the taxable year during which the bond was held by the taxpayer bears to the number of months from the beginning
of the taxable year (or, if the Premium Bond was acquired in the taxable year, from the date of acquisition) to the date of
maturity. The basis of the Premium Bond is reduced by the amount of the amortizable bond premium. The amortized bond
premium is treated as a reduction in the tax-exempt interest received on the Premium Bond. No deduction is allowed on account
of OIP.

Holders of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the effect of such OIP with respect to their
federal tax liability.

Interest Expense Deductions for Financial Institutions

Under Section 265 of the Code, financial institutions are denied any deduction for interest expenses that are allocable,
by a formula, to tax-exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986. An exception, which permits a deduction for 80% of such
interest expenses, is provided in respect of certain tax-exempt obligations issued by a qualified issuer that specifically designates
such obligations as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” under Section 265 of the Code.

The School District is a qualified issuer and the School District has designated the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” for the purposes and effect contemplated by Section 265 of the Code.

Financial institutions intending to purchase Bonds should consult their own tax advisors to determine the effect of the
interest expense deduction on their federal tax liability.

Continuing Compliance

The Code imposes various terms, restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income
for Federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The School District has covenanted to comply with
all such requirements, including non-arbitrage requirements under Section 148 of the Code, that are necessary to ensure that
interest on the Bonds will not be includable in gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with these
covenants could result in interest on the Bonds being includable in gross income for Federal income tax purposes and such
inclusion could be required retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance
with the aforesaid covenants. Moreover, Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any
actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the
tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds.

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Resolution and other relevant documents may be
changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the
circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents. Such changes or actions could constitute an
exchange or other tax event with respect to the Bonds, which could result in gain or loss to the holder of a Bond, and a
consequent tax liability.

Pursuant to its continuing disclosure obligations made pursuant to SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (see “Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking” herein), the School District may be required to provide notice of such changes or actions, as Material Events under
said Rule. However, holders of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the effect of such changes or actions with
respect to their federal tax liability.

Collateral Tax Liabilities
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Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for
Federal and Pennsylvania income tax purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds
may result in other collateral effects on a Bondholder’s Federal, state or local tax liabilities. The nature and extent of these other
tax consequences may depend upon the particular tax status of the Bondholder or the Bondholder’s other items of income or
deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinions regarding any tax consequences other than what is set forth in its opinion; each
Bondholder or potential Bondholder is urged to consult with its own tax advisors with respect to the effects of purchasing,
holding or disposing of the Bonds on its tax liabilities.

For example, corporations are required to include all tax-exempt interest in determining “adjusted current earnings”
under Section 56(c) of the Code, which may increase the amount of any alternative minimum tax owed. Other tax consequences
for certain taxpayers include, without limitation, increasing the federal tax liability of certain foreign corporations subject to the
branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code, increasing the federal tax liability of certain insurance companies under
Section 832 of the Code, increasing the federal tax liability of certain S corporations subject to Sections 1362 and 1375 of the
Code, increasing the federal tax liability of certain individual recipients of social security or railroad retirement benefits under
Section 86 of the Code, limiting the use of the Earned Income Credit under Section 32 of the Code, and denying an interest
expense deduction to certain financial institutions under Section 265 of the Code (unless, and in the circumstance when, the
Bonds have been designated by the issuer as “qualified tax-exempt obligations™).

Change in Law; Adverse Determinations

From time to time, certain legislative proposals may be introduced, or are pending, in the Congress of the United
States, including some that carry retroactive effective dates, that, if, enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters
described above or affect the market value of the Bonds. No prediction can be made whether or in what form any such proposal
or proposals might be enacted into law or whether, if enacted, the same would apply to bonds issued prior to enactment.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or proposed federal tax
legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax legislation.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) regularly audits tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in the view
of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includible in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income
tax purposes. No prediction can be made whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is
commenced, under current procedures, the Service may treat the School District as a taxpayer and the Bondholders may have no
right to participate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of
the Bonds until such time as the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate outcome.

Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax-exempt obligations, such as the
Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service. Additionally, backup withholding may apply to any such
payments to any Bondholder who fails to provide an accurate Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and
Certification, or to any Bondholder who is notified by the Service of a failure to report any interest or dividends required to be
shown on federal income tax returns.

Circular 230

This Official Statement contains tax advice written to assist the marketing, distribution, sale and placement of the
Bonds. Whether authored by Bond Counsel, the School District, the Underwriter, counsel to either of the foregoing, or any other
tax practitioner, such advice is not intended to be used, and may not be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding
penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayer.

THE FOREGOING IS NOT INTENDED AS AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST OF THE PROVISIONS OF FEDERAL,
STATE AND LOCAL TAX LAWS WHICH MAY HAVE AN EFFECT ON INDIVIDUALS AND CORPORATIONS
HOLDING THE BONDS OR RECEIVING INTEREST THEREON. PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS SHOULD
CONSULT WITH THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE EFFECT ON THEIR FEDERAL, STATE OR
LOCAL TAX LIABILITY AND GENERAL FINANCIAL AFFAIRS OF HOLDING THE BONDS OR RECEIVING
INTEREST THEREON.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

In accordance with the requirements of the Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”), the School District (being an “obligated person™ with respect to $10,000,000 or more of outstanding
securities, including the Bonds, within the meaning of the Rule), will agree to provide the following to the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, either directly or indirectly through a
designated agent:
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(A) Annually, not later than 180 days following the end of each fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ending June
30, 2012, the following financial information and operating information for the School District:

o the financial statements for the most recent fiscal year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles for local government units and audited in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards

e asummary of the budget for the current fiscal year
e the assessed value and market value of all taxable real estate for the current fiscal year
e the taxes and millage rates imposed for the current fiscal year

o the real property tax collection results for the most recent fiscal year, including (1) the real estate levy
imposed (expressed both as a millage rate and an aggregate dollar amount), (2) the dollar amount of real
estate taxes collected that represented current collections (expressed both as a percentage of such fiscal
year’s levy and as an aggregate dollar amount), (3) the amount of real estate taxes collected that
represented taxes levied in prior years (expressed as an aggregate dollar amount), and (4) the total
amount of real estate taxes collected (expressed both as a percentage of the current year’s levy and as an
aggregate dollar amount)

e alist of the ten (10) largest real estate taxpayers and, for each, the total assessed value of real estate for
the current fiscal year

e pupil enrollment figures, including enrollment at the end of the most recent fiscal year, current
enrollment and projected enrollment for the beginning of the next fiscal year, including a breakdown
between elementary and secondary enrollment (to the extent reasonably feasible);

(B) If not submitted as part of the annual financial information, then when and if available, audited financial statements
for the School District;

(C) Inatimely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, notice of the occurrence of
any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: (1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; (2) non-
payment related defaults, if material; (3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; (5) substitution of credit or liquidity
providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material
notices or determinations with respect to the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax-exempt status of the Bonds; (7) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material; (8) bond calls, if
material, and tender offers; (9) defeasances; (10) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Bonds, if material; (11) rating changes; (12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the School
District; (13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the School District or the sale
of all or substantially all of the assets of the School District, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any
such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and (14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee
or the change of name of a trustee, if material; and

(D) in a timely manner, notice of a failure of the School District to provide the required annual financial information
specified above, on or before the date specified above.

With respect to the filing of annual financial and operating information, the School District reserves the right to modify
from time to time the specific types of information provided or the format of the presentation of such information to the extent
necessary or appropriate as a result of a change in legal requirements or a change in the nature of the School District or its operations
or financial reporting, but the School District will agree that any such modification will be done in a manner consistent with the Rule.

The events listed in (C) above are those specified in the Rule, not all of which may be relevant to the Bonds. The School
District may from time to time choose to file notice of the occurrence of other events, in addition to the events listed in (C) above, but
the School District does not commit to provide notice of the occurrence of any events except those specifically listed in (C) above.

The School District acknowledges that its undertaking pursuant to the Rule described herein is intended to be for the
benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds and shall be enforceable by the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds,
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but the right of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds to enforce the provisions of the School District’s continuing disclosure
undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement, and any failure by the School District to comply with the
provisions of the undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds.

The School District’s obligations with respect to continuing disclosure described herein shall terminate upon the prior
redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds or if and when the School District is no longer an “obligated person” with respect to
the Bonds, within the meaning of the Rule.

The MSRB has been designated by the SEC to be the central and sole repository for continuing disclosure information filed
by issuers of municipal securities since July 1, 2009. Information and notices filed by municipal issuers (and other “obligated
persons” with respect to municipal securities issues) are made available through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access
(EMMA) System, which may be accessed on the internet at http://www.emma.msrb.org.

During the past five (5) years, the School District has been in compliance with respect to all prior written undertakings
under the Rule to provide continuing disclosure with respect to its outstanding securities, with the following exception(s): The
School District failed to file in a timely manner the required annual financial and operating information for fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2010; however, as of the date of this Preliminary Official Statement the School District has submitted
such information to the MSRB and the same is now available through the MSRB’s EMMA System. The School District has
implemented procedures to ensure that all future filings required by its continuing disclosure undertakings will be made in a
timely manner.

RATING

Moody’s Investors Service is expected to assign its municipal Bond rating of “___ ” to this issue of Bonds with the
understanding that upon delivery of the Bonds, a policy insuring the payment when due of principal of and interest on the Bonds
will be issued by . Moody’s Investors Service is expected to assign its enhanced rating of “__" based upon the additional
security provided by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Act 150 School District Intercept Program, and an underlying
municipal Bond rating of “___” to this issue of Bonds. Such rating reflects only the view of such organization and any desired
explanation of the significance of such rating should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the following
address: Moody’s Investors Service, 7 World Trade Center, 250 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007. Generally, a
rating agency bases its rating on the information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions of
its own. There is no assurance that any such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised
downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency, if circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal
of such rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds from the School District, subject to certain conditions precedent,
and will purchase all of the Bonds if any of such Bonds are purchased. The Bonds will be purchased by the Underwriter for a
purchase price of $ , equal to the par value of the Bonds less an underwriters’ discount of $ , plus a net
original issue premium of $

LEGAL OPINION

The Bonds are offered with the approving legal opinion of Dinsmore & Shohl LLP, Bond Counsel, of Pittsburgh,
Pennsylvania. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the School District by Gary A. Jubas, Esquire, of Ebensburg,
Pennsylvania, School District Solicitor.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The School District has retained Public Financial Management, Inc., Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, as financial advisor (the
"Financial Advisor") in connection with the preparation, authorization and issuance of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor is not
obligated to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or to assume responsibility for the accuracy,
completeness, or fairness of the information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement. Public Financial Management, Inc.
is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or
other public securities.
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MISCELLANEOUS

This Preliminary Official Statement has been prepared under the direction of the School District by Public Financial
Management, Inc., Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, in its capacity as Financial Advisor to the School District. The information set
forth in this Preliminary Official Statement has been obtained from the School District and from other sources believed to be
reliable. Insofar as any statement herein includes matters of opinion or estimates about future conditions, it is not intended as
representation of fact, and there is no guarantee that it is, or will be, realized. Summaries or descriptions of provisions of the
Bonds, the Resolution, and all references to other materials not purporting to be quoted in full are only brief outlines of some of
the provisions thereof. Reference is hereby made to the complete documents, copies of which will be furnished by the School
District or the Financial Advisor upon request. The information assembled in this Preliminary Official Statement is not to be
construed as a contract with holders of the Bonds.

The School District has authorized the distribution of this Preliminary Official Statement.

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Cambria County, Pennsylvania

By:
Robert Tomallo
President, Board of School Directors
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APPENDIX A
Demographic and Economic Information
Relating to the Northern Cambria School District



Population

Table A-1 shows population trends for the School District, Cambria County and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The
School District's population decreased between 2000 and 2010. Table A-2 shows 2010 age composition in Cambria County and
for the Commonwealth.

TABLE A-1
POPULATION TRENDS

Compound Average
Annual Percentage Change

Area 2000 2010 2000-2010
School DiStriCt.........ccoveiriinieriiean 8,752 7,898 -1.02%
Cambria CouNnty.......ccecevvevervciieseriennn 152,598 143,679 -0.60%
Pennsylvania........c..ccoceeerieeieieiniiiennens 12,281,054 12,702,379 0.34%

Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census, Decennial Census and Pennsylvania State Data Center, 2000 & 2010 General Population
and Housing Characteristics: Pennsylvania.

TABLE A-2
AGE COMPOSITION
0-17 18-64 65+
Years Years Years
Cambria County. 19.7% 61.5% 18.8%
Pennsylvania...... 22.0% 62.6% 15.4%

Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census, 2010 Census, Summary File 1.
Employment

Overall NonFarm data are not compiled for the School District or municipalities within it, but such data are compiled for
the Johnstown Metropolitan Statistical Area for November 2011.

TABLE A-3
NONFARM JOBS
(Johnstown Metropolitan Statistical Area)

Industry Employment Net Change From:
ESTABLISHMENT DATA Nov 2011 Oct 2011 Sept 2011 Nov 2010 Oct 2011  Nov 2010
Total Nonfarm 62,100 61,900 60,900 61,100 200 1,000
Total Private 52,800 52,700 51,900 51,500 100 1,300
Goods Producing 6,700 6,700 6,700 6,800 0 -100|
Manufacturing 4,600 4,600 4,600 4,500 0 100,
Service-Providing 55,400 55,200 54,200 54,300 200 1,100
PRIVATE SERVICE-PROVIDING 46,100 46,000 45,200 44,700 100 1,400
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 11,800 11,600 11,500 11,600 200 200
Retail trade 7,200 7,000 6,900 7,200 200 0
Professional and Business Services 5,600 5,600 5,600 5,600 0 0
Educational and Health Services 16,600 16,500 15,800 16,000 100 600
Leisure and Hospitality 4,700 4,900 5,000 4,600 -200 100,
Government 9,300 9,200 9,000 9,600 100 -300
Federal Government 1,100 1,200 1,200 1,300 -100 -200
State Government 2,200 2,100 2,100 2,300 100 -100|
Local Government 6,000 5,900 5,700 6,000 100 0
Data benchmarked to March 2010 ***Data changes of 100 may be due to rounding***

Source: Workforce Information News Release




Table A-4 shows recent trends in employment and unemployment for the County and the Commonwealth. The
unemployment rate for the County has been higher than that for the Commonwealth during the period shown.

TABLE A-4

RECENT TRENDS IN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT*

2006
Cambria County
Civilian Labor Force (000)........ 68.0
Employment (000)..........ccccee.. 64.4
Unemployment (000)................. 3.6
Unemployment Rate .................. 5.3
Pennsylvania
Civilian Labor Force (000)........ 6,309.0
Employment (000)..........ccccee.. 6,022.0
Unemployment (000).................. 286.0
Unemployment Rate .................. 45

*Residence Data.
WAs of November 2011

Major employers in the County include:

Conemaugh Valley Memorial Hospital
Cambria County

Wal-Mart Associates Inc

Concurrent Technologies Corporation
St Francis College

American Red Cross Blood Services
Laurel Technologies

University of Pittsburgh

Greater Johnstown School District Inc
Sheetz Inc

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011® Rate

68.2 69.5 69.4 68.4 68.7 0.15%

64.6 65.2 63.4 61.9 62.9 -0.53%
3.6 43 6.0 6.5 58  10.01%
5.2 6.2 8.6 9.4 8.4

6,330.0 6,441.0 6,414.0 6,358.0 6353.0 0.07%

6,055.0 6,099.0 5,895.0 5,819.0 5854.0 -0.67%

275.0 342.0 519.0 538.0 499.0 12.66%
4.3 53 8.1 8.5 7.9

Health Care and Social Assistance
Public Administration

Retail Trade

Professional and Technical Services
Educational Services

Health Care and Social Assistance
Manufacturing

Educational Services

Educational Services

Retail Trade

Source: Center for Workforce Information & Analysis — 1st Quarter 2011 — Final.



Income

Table A-5 shows trends in per capita income for the School District, Cambria County and Pennsylvania over the 2000-
2010 period. Per capita income in the School District and the County is lower than per capita income in the Commonwealth.

TABLE A-5

TRENDS IN PER CAPITA INCOME*

Compound Average Annual
Percentage Change

2000 2010 2000-2010
School District ...... $13,144 $20,321 4.45%
Cambria County 16,058 21,278 0.66%
Pennsylvania ........c.ccoceooereneneneeese e 20,880 27,049 2.62%

*Income is defined by the Bureau of the Census as the sum of wage and salary income, non-farm self-employment income, net
self-employment income, Social Security and Railroad retirement income, public assistance income, interest, dividends,
pensions, etc. before deductions for personal income taxes, Social Security, etc. School District income is the population-

weighted average for political subdivisions.

Source: Pennsylvania State Data Center and U.S. Census Bureau, 2006-2010 American Community Survey.

Commercial Activity
Table A-6 shows trends for retail sales in the MSA and the Commonwealth.
TABLE A-6

TOTAL RETAIL SALES
(Millions of Dollars)

2007 2008 2009
MSA ..o $1,845,289 $1,822,130 $1,774,293
Pennsylvania ..........ccccceceeeenenne. 195,558,005 NR 180,948,327

NR: Not Reported.
Source: Sales and Marketing Management Magazine

2010
$1,791,762
174,483,292

2011
$2,003,965
188,193,104



Educational Facilities

While there are no institutions of higher education located within the School District, the following institutions of higher
education are within commuting distance, Saint Francis University, located in Loretto; Mt. Aloysius College, Cresson; the
University of Pittsburgh at Johnstown, Johnstown; and Indiana University of Pennsylvania; Indiana; Pennsylvania State
University, State College; the Altoona Campus of the Pennsylvania State University, Altoona; and the Penn Highlands College.
Medical

Conemaugh Memorial Health Center, Johnstown; Altoona Hospital, Altoona; Somerset Hospital, Somerset; Windber
Hospital, Windber; and Miners Hospital, Hastings, Pennsylvania provide medical care to residents of the School District.

Transportation
Pennsylvania Route 553 travels in an east/west direction through the School District, and U.S. Route 219, also passes

through the School District linking the School District to major east-west and north-sough arteries. U.S. Route 219 connects to
the Pennsylvania Turnpike (Interstate 76) with U.S. Routes 30 and 22, and to the north providing access to Interstate 80
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APPENDIX B -
Form of Bond Counsel Opinion



OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

The form of the approving legal opinion of Dinsmore &
Shohl LLP, Bond Counsel, is set forth below. The actual
opinion will be delivered on the date of delivery of the
Bonds and may vary from the form set forth to reflect
circumstances both factual and legal at the time of such
delivery. Recirculation of this Official Statement shall
create no implication that Dinsmore & Shohl LLP has
reviewed any of the matters set forth in such opinion
subsequent to the date thereof.

We have served as Bond Counsel to Northern Cambria School District (Cambria County,
Pennsylvania) (the "Local Government Unit") and do hereby undertake to advise you in connection with the
issuance, sale and delivery of its $ , aggregate principal amount, General Obligation Bonds, Series
of 2012 (the "Bonds"), issued in fully registered form, dated and bearing interest from , 2012,
maturing on various annual dates ending \ .

In that capacity, we have examined the Constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; the
Public School Code of 1949, Act of March 10, 1949, P.L. 30, No. 14, as amended (the "School Code"); the
Local Government Unit Debt Act, 53 Pa.C.S.A. 88001 et seq., as amended (the "Debt Act"); the formal action
of the Governing Body of the Local Government Unit authorizing the incurrence of nonelectoral debt
evidenced by the Bonds (the "Debt Ordinance"); the corresponding Certificate of Approval of the Department
of Community and Economic Development; the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax
Code"); the Federal Income Tax Certificate of an authorized officer; and such other certificates, proceedings
and law as we deemed necessary in order to render this opinion. Unless separately noted, we have not
independently verified factual certifications made to us by the Local Government Unit, its officers and agents
during the course of our engagement.

Both principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable at the designated corporate trust office of
, Pennsylvania, as Paying Agent for the Local Government Unit;
the bank has addltlonally been appointed Registrar and Sinking Fund Depository for the Bonds.

These proceedings demonstrate that, absent any meritoriously-based action in a governmental or
judicial forum affecting the validity of the Bonds, the same have been delivered upon full payment.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion on this date as follows:
1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the Local Government Unit.
€)) The Bonds are issued for a valid purpose under the School Code.

(b) The Bonds, and all other outstanding debt of the Local Government Unit, are
within constitutional and statutory limitations.

(c) The Debt Ordinance authorizing the Bonds was duly and properly enacted
and is in full force and effect.
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(d) The Bonds conform, in all substantial respects, to the form provided in the
Debt Ordinance.

2. The Bonds are secured by a pledge of the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Local
Government Unit. The Local Government Unit has effectively covenanted in the Debt Ordinance to include
the amount of debt service on this issue, in each fiscal year for which such sums are due, in its budget for that
year; to appropriate such amounts to the payment of such debt service; and to pay or cause to be paid, from
time to time as and when due, the principal of the Bonds and the interest thereon on the dates, at the place and
in the manner stated in the Bonds.

3. Presently included among the general revenues of the Local Government Unit available for the
payment of the Bonds are ad valorem real estate taxes, whose levy upon all taxable real property situate within the
corporate limits of the Local Government Unit is subject to the limitations of Pennsylvania Act No. 1 of Special
Session 2006 ("Act 1'), which became effective June 27, 2006.

4, The Bonds are payable and enforceable according to their own terms, those of the Debt
Ordinance and all provisions of the Debt Act; however, any such payment and enforcement could be
restrained by a court of proper jurisdiction operating under the authority of bankruptcy, receivership and other
similar laws of accommodation and adjustment of creditors' rights, as then applicable.

5. The Bonds, having all the qualities and incidents of securities under Article 8 of the Uniform
Commercial Code, are negotiable instruments.

6. The Bonds are an authorized investment, under the Probate, Estates and Fiduciaries Code, as
amended, for fiduciaries and personal representatives (as such terms are therein defined) within the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

7. Under the laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions in effect as of the date hereof,
interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for Federal income tax purposes, pursuant to the Tax
Code. Furthermore, interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a specific item of tax preference, under
Section 57(a)(5) of the Tax Code, in computing the alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations.
Due to the designation of the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" pursuant to Section 265(b)(3) of the
Code, certain financial institutions may be able to deduct 80% of the interest expense incurred in purchasing
or carrying the Bonds. In rendering the opinions in this paragraph, we have assumed continuing compliance
with certain covenants designed to meet the requirements of Section 103 of the Tax Code. We express no
opinion as to any other Federal income tax consequence arising from ownership of the Bonds.

8. The Bonds, and interest income therefrom, are free from taxation for purposes of personal
income, corporate net income and personal property taxes within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
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Robert A. Shaffer

CERTIIIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
Allegheny Building
901 Oak Sweet
Johnstown, Pennsylvania 15902
PHONE (814) 536-6625
FAX (814) 536-3435

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of School Directors November 21, 2011
Northern Cambria Schoo) District '
Northermm Cambria, Pennsylvania

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the busincss-type
activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Northern Cambria School District as of
and for the year ended Juue 30, 2011, which collectively comprise Northern Cambria School District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the ‘Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Northern
Cambria School District’s menagemeat. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on my audit.

T conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued hy the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that T plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonablc assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounls and disclosarcs in the financial statements.  An audit also includes asscssing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by managemeat, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Thelicve that my aadit provides a reasonable basis for ury opinions,

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Northern Cambiria School District as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 11 to the financial statements, the School District adopted the provisions of GASB
Statcincut No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”, in 2011.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated Novermber 21,2011, on
my consideration of Northern Cambria School District’s inicmal control over financial reporting and on my tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regalations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of intemal conrol over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not w provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliancc. 'That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Statcs of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages M-1 through M-10, and budgetary comparison information on page 30 and the
schedules of OPEB plan fund progress and employcr contributions on pages 31 and 32 be preseated to supplement the
basic financiul statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, cconomic, or historical context. [ have applied certain
limited procedurcs to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and commparine the infarmalion for consistencv with manapement’s resnonces ta mv innniriee the hacir
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL. DISTRICT
Northern Cambria, Pennsylvania

The District does not expect significant growth in the near future given the residentlal nature of the local economy
within the District.

The revenue budget for the 2011-12 year is $1,056,898 less than the original budget for 2010-2011. This _
represents a 6.5% decrease in budgeted revenues. The expenditure budget for the 2011-2012 year is $1,209,855

less than the original budget for 2010-2011, or a 7.1% decrease. The District increased property taxes 4 mills
during the 2010-2011 year.

The comparison of revenue and expenditure categories is as follows:

Table A~7
BUDGETED REVENUES

2011-2012 2010-2011
Local 21% 21%
State 75% 74%
Federal/Other 4% 5%

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

2011-2012 2010-2011
Instruction 60% 62%
Support Services 31% 29%
Non-Instruction/Community 3% 3%
Fund Transfers/Debt 6% 6%

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students. investors and creditors with
a general overview of the District's finances and 1o show the Board's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact Jennie L.

Ivory, Director of Finance, at Northern Cambria School District, 601 Joseph Street, Northern Cambria, PA 15714,
(814) 948-5481.

M-10
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Governmental  Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Casb Equivalents $2,379,478 $100 $2.379,578
hvesunents 2.251 0 2,251
Due [rom Other Clovernments 957,737 9.756 967,493
Other Receivables 3329 27,011 60,262
Inventories 15,000 14,164 29.164
Tatal Corrent Assets $3.387,717 $51,031 $3,438.748
Noncurrent Assets:
Land $38,834 $0 338,834
Site Improvements 886,038 0 886,038
Building and Ruilding Ioproverments 22,117,099 0 22,717,099
Furniture and Equipment 2,797,890 "393.939 3,191,820
Less Accumulated Depreciation (12,610,088) (248.697) (12.858,785)
Deferred Bond Costs, Nel 82,425 0 82,425
Totzd Noocurrent Assets $13,912,198 $145,242 $14,057.440
TOTAL ASSETS $17,299.915 $196,273 $17.496,188
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Intemal Balances $110,802 ($110,802) 50
Accounls Payable 396,691 25,892 422,583
Current Portion of L.opg-Term Deht 230,000 0 230,000
Accrucd Salaries and Bencfits 724,487 514 725,001
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 36,257 0 36,257
Accrued Interest 115,598 1) 115,598
Neferred Revenucs 0 4,344 4,344
Total Carvent Liabtlities $1,613,835 ($80,052) $1,533,7R3
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payablc $12,180,000 30 $12,180,000
Compensated Absences 252,907 23,300 276.207
Other Postemployment Benchits 1,546,566 0 1.516.566
Total Noncurrent Lishibities $13,979,473 $23,300 $14,002,773
TOTAL LYABILITTES $15,593.308 (356,752) $15,536,556
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets. Net of Related Debt $1,419.773 $145.2492 $1,565,015
Unrestricted 286,834 107.783 394,617
TOTAL NET ASSETS $1,706,607 $253,025 $1.959.632
TOTAL LIABILITTES AND NET ASSETS $17,299,915 $196,273 $17.496.188

The notes to financial sustemoents are av integral part of thesc statements.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

#0617 P.0D4&

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Captial Total
General Projects Goverumental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $2,046,233 $333,245 $2.379,478
Investments 665 1,586 2,251
Due from Other Governments 9587.737 0 957,737
Other Receivables 33.251 0 33,251
Inventorics 15.000 0 15,000
TOTAL ASSETS : $3.052,886 $334.831 $3,387.717
LIABILITTES AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABILTTIES
Due To Other Funds $110.802 0 $110,802
Accounts Payablc 376.681 20,010 396,691
Accrued Salarcs and Benehits 724,487 0 724,487
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 36,257 0 36,257
TOTAL LIABILYT(ES $1,248,227 $20,010 $1,268,237
'UND BALANCES
Nonspendable - Inventories $15,000 $0 $15,000
Aussigned for Cupital Projects 0 314.821 314,82)
Unassigned 1,789,659 0 1,789,659
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 31,804,659 $314,821 $2,119,480
TOTAL LIARTLITLES AND
FUND BALANCES $3,052,886 3334,831 $3.387.7117

‘The uotes Lo financial stalcments are an inlegral part of these statements.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATYON OF THE GOVERNMENTAI. FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $2,119,480

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital Assets used in guvernmental activities arc not financial resources and
therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds. The cost of assets is
$26,439,86! and the accurulated depreciation is $12,610,088. 13,829,773

Bond issue-costs are recarded us expenditures in the year of the bond issue in the
funds, but represcent un asset on the Statement of Net Assels that is amortized to
expensc over the lifc of the debt. 82,425

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not duc and payable in the
current puriod, and therefore are not reported as liahilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:

Bonds payablc ($12,410,000)

Accured interest om the bonds (115,598)

Compensated absencces (252,907)

Other posiciiployment benefits (1,546,566) (14.325,071)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - GOVERN MENTAL ACTIVITIES $1.706,607

The notes to financial statemcnts are an integral part of these statements.
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ROBERT SHAFFER

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCFS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

#0617 P.006

Major Funds
Capital Total
General Projects Govermmental
Fund Funds Founds
REVENUES
Local Sources $3,300,118 $78 $3,300,196
State Sources 10,819,869 0 10,819,869
Federal Sources 2,241,775 0 2,241,775
TOTAL REVENUES $16,36),762 $78 $16,361,840
EXPENDITURES
Instruction $9,975,154 $0 $9,975,154
Support Services 5,038,684 0 5,038,684
Operation of Nuninstructional Services 374,689 0 374.689
Facilities Acquistion, Canstruction and
Improvement Services 0 145,615 145,615
Decbt Services 960,772 0 960,772
Refund of Prior Year Recejpts 7,453 0 1433
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $16,356,752 $145,615 $16,502,367
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $5,010 ($145,537) ($140,527)
OTHFR FINANCIHING SOURCES (USFS)
Toterfund Transfers Tn (Out) (Net) {$100,000) $100,000 $0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ($100,000) $100,000 50
Net Change in Fund Balances (3$94,990) (345,537 ($140,527)
Fund Balance - July 1, 2010, as restated 1,899,649 360,358 2,260,007
Fund Balance - Juae 30, 2011 $1,804,659 $314.821 $2,119,480

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

-
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NORKTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL. DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAYANCE
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIFS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balance - guvernmental funds ($140,527)

Amounts repurted for governumental activities in the statement of
aclivities are dillerent because:

Capital outlays are reported in povermmental funds as expenditures,
Howcever, in the Statement of aclivities, the cost of those assets is
allncated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expensc.
This is the amount by which depreciation cxceeds capital outlays in

the period.
Depreciation expense (8 608,419) (457,304)
Capital outlays $ 151,115

Repaymeat of boad principal $365.000 and the repayment of lcase

purchase obligations principal $64,792 arc expenditurcs in the

governmental funds, but the repayments reduce long-term liabilities

in the Statement of Nut Assets. 429,792

In the statement of activities certaia operating cxpenses - compensated

absences decreascd by $239,645 and other postemploymeat benefits (OI'EB)
increascd by ($403,162) are measured by the amounts carncd during the year.
In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these ilems are measured
by the amount of Gnuncial resources used. ‘This amount represents (he

ditterence. (163.517)
Net (increase) in acerued interest expense on bonds payable (17.572)
Change in net assets of governmental activities ($349,128)

The aotes to financial stawements are an intcgral part of these stalements.

8-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30,2011

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Lquivalents
Due From Other Funds
Duc From QOther Governments
Tnventories
Other Receivables

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Fumniture and Equipment (Net of Accurnulated Depreciation)

Total Noncurrent Asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilitics:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salacies and Benel
Deferred Revenues

7z

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Linbilities:
Compensated Abscences

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Tnvestment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIARIUTTIES AND NET ASSETS

The notes to financial staterments are an integral part of these stutermnents.
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Food
Service

$100
110,802
9,756
14,164
27,011

$161,833

$145,242

$145,242

$307,075

$25.892
514
4,344

$30.750

$23,300

$54,050

$145,242
107,783

$253,025

$307,075
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES TN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR TAE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Food
Service
OPERATINGC REVENDUES:
Food Service Revenue $279,066
TOTAL OPERA'TING REVENUES: $279,066
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries $190,766
Tinployce Benefits 70,739
Purchased Professional and Technical Sarvices ) 77,224
Purchased Property Service 17,759
Other Operating Expenscs 4,137
Supplies 266,591
Depreciation 21,136
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $648,352
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) ($369,286)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State Sources $37.859
Federal Sources 323914
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) $361,773
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ($7,513)
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2010 260,538
TOTAL NET ASSETS - JTUNE 30, 2011 $253,025

‘I'he notcs 1o financial statements arc an inlcgral part of these statements.,

-10-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Cash Flows froam Operating Activities
Cash Received from Users
Cash Payments [or Olher Operating Bxpenses
Cash Maymeats to Employees for Scrvices
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

Net Cash (Used for) Operatiog Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

State Svurces
Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financviag Activitics

Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year
Cash and Cosh Equivalents End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income lv Net Cash Provided
by (Used for) Qperating Activities:

Operaling locome (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation
(increase) in Accounts and Interfitnd Recetvables
(Increase) in Invenlorics
Decrense in Prepaid Expensos
Increase in Accounts Payable
(Decrease) in Accrucd Salaries/Benefits
{Dterease) in Deferred Revenue
Donated Conmmodities Used
Increase in Compensated Absences

Total Adjustments

Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activitics

The notes 10 Ainancial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Food
Scrvice

5284604

(227,089)
(1R6,240)
(213,964)

(5342,6R9)

537,608
283,915

$323,613

($19,076)

19,176

$100

($369,286)

$21,136
(48,769)
(144)
3,708
17,091
(471)
(2,452)
35,680
818

$26,597

{$342.689)
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2011
Student
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalcnts $89,347
TOTAL ASSETS $89,347
) — ——— ————— _————_]
LIABILITIES
Due to Student Groups $89,347
TOTAL LIABILITIES $89,347
NET ASSETS 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $89,347

The notes to financial statements are an intcgral part of these staternents.

-12-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE t: DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY:

Northen Cambria School District is a third class school district operating under the
regulations of the Pennsylvania Department of Education. Northern Cambria School
District encompasses the Borough of Northern Cambria and the Townships of Barr
and Susquehanna located in the County of Cambria, Pennsylvania. The School
District maintains classes from kindergarten through the twelfth grade for residents of
those municipalities.

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity” as amended by (GASB) Statement No. 39, “Determining Whether
Certain Organizations Arc Component Units™, establishes the criteria for determining
the activities, organizations and functions of government to be included in the
financial statcments of the reporting cntity. The criteria used in determining whether
such organizations should be included in the School District’s financial reporting
cntity are financial intcrdcpendency, selection of goveming authority, designation of
management, ability to significantly influence operation, accountability for fiscal
matters, scope of public service and special financing rclationships. The School
District has evaluated its rclationship with other entities Lo determine if their financial
information should be included in thesc financial statements. Based on this
evaluation, no entity has been included as a component unit of the District’s reporting .
entity becausc of the limited oversight responsibility and limited accountability for
fiscal matters. Accordingly, the District has no componcnt units.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Northern Cambria School District's financial statements are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for estublishing GAAP for state
and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Integrpretations). .
Governments are also requircd to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounnting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989, (when
applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB prunouncéments. The more
significant accounting policics established in GAAP and used by Northern Cambria
School District are discussed below.

-13-
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NOTE 2:

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously

approved Statcent No.34, Basic [Financial Statements - and Management's

Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Certain of the

significant changces in the Statement include the following:

The financial statements include:

= A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an
analysis of Northern Cambria School District’s overall financial position and

results of operations.

* Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of
Northern Cambria School District's activities.

* A changg in the fund financial statements to focus on the major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements
(including notes to financial statements).

(A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activitics display information
about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the
reporting entity except fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activitics gencrally
are financed through taxes, inlergovernmental revenues and other non-
exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part
by lces charged to cxternal partics for goods or services.

14-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAIL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of
which is considercd to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate sct of self-balancing accounts that constitute ifs assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenucs, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are organized into
three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is
placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary catcgories. A fund is
considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the District or mcets the
following criteria:

(1)  Total assets, Liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at lcast 10 percent of
the comresponding Lotal for all funds of that category or type; and

2) Total assets, liabilitics, revenues, or cxpenditures/expenses of the
individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least S percent
of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds
combincd.

‘The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

General Fund - The General Fund is the primary opcrating fund of Northem Cambria
School District and is always classified as a major fund. It is uscd to account for all
activities excepl those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in
other funds.

Capital Projects Funds - Accounts for transfers from other funds and related
investment earnings for capital outlays not accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds -- Food Service Fund - Enterprise funds are used to account for
business-like activities. These activitics arc financed primarity by uscr charges and
the measurcment of Anancial activity focuses on net income measurement sirnilar to
the private sector. Northern Canbria School District's only enterprise fund is the food
service fund.

-15-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
June 30, 2011

NOTE2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continucd)

Fiduciary Fund Types (not included in government-wide statements)

Agency Funds - Agency funds account for assets held by Northern Cambria School
District in a purely custodial capacity. Northern Cambria School District's only
agency fund are the accounts for activities of student groups.

Major and Nonnajor Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non major as follows:
Maijor: :
General Fund, Capital Projects Funds and Proprietary Fund (Food
Service).
Nonmajor:
None

(B) MEASUREMENT ¥FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a tcrin used to describe "which” transaclions are recorded
within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when”
transactions are recorded regardless of thc measurement focus-applied.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities,
both govcrnmental and business-like activitics arc presented using the economic
resources measurerment focus as defined in item two (2) below.

In the fund financial statements, the "currcnt financial resources” measurerent focus
or the "economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

(1)  All governmental funds utilizc a "current financial resources” measurement
focus. Only currcat financial assets and liabilities are generally included on
their balance sheets. Their operating staternents present sourccs and uses of
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds,
use fund balances as their measure of available spcndable financial resources
at the cnd of the period.

-16-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

2) The proprietary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus.
‘The accounting objcctives of this measurement focus are the determination of
operating incorme, changes in net asscts (or cost recovery), financial position
and cash flows. All assets and Habilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associaled with their activities ure reported. Proprictary fund cquity is
classified as net assets.

(3)  Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations;
therefore, measurement focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statemnent of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitics,
both governmental and businesslike activities arc presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual hasis of accounting, revenucs are recognized when
eamcd and expenses arc recorded when the liability is incurred or econemic asset
uscd. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and Jiabilities resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions arc recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statcments, governmental fands and agency funds arc presented
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when "mcasurable and available.” Measurable
mcans knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means
collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) arc rccorded when the related Fund liability is incurred,
except for general obligation bond principal and interest which arc reported when
due.

All proprictary [unds utilize the accraal basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis

of accounting, revenues arc recognized when carncd and expenses arc recorded when
the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

-17-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

e Budgets

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Annual appropriated budgcts are adopted for the General Fund. All
annual appropriations lapsc at fiscal ycar end. Budget revisions are made by the
School District during the year after approval by the Board of School Directors.

e Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles rcquires management to makc eslimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

e Interfund Transactions

Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the reporting entity are
classificd as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the Statement of Activities,
all interfund transfers belween individual governmental funds have been
climinated.

e Cash and Temporary Investments

Cash and temporary investments consist of cash, ccrtificates of deposit and liquid
asset funds. '

Cash and tcmporary investments as reflected on the balance sheels total
$2,471,276 at June 30, 2011. All deposits and invcstments are covercd by
federal depository insurance and excess balances (over $250,000) are
collateralized with governmental securities in accordance with state requirements.
All funds were properly secured at all times during the fiscal school year.

e Inventories

Tnventories in the Food Service Fund are presented at estimated cost.
e Fund Balance

Tn the year ending June 30, 2011, the School District implemented Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Vund Type Definitions. Statement No. 54 changes the terminology
and classification of fund balance to rcflect spending constraints on rcsources,
rather than availability for appropriation. This approach is intendcd to provide
users more consistent and understandable information about a fund’s net
resources.
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NOTE 2:

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOI, DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

Constraints are broken into five classifications: nonspendable, restricted,
comumitled, assigned, and unassigned. These classifications serve to inform
readers of the financial statements of the cxtent to which the government is
bound to honor any constraints on specific purposes for which resources in a fund
can be spent.

<« Nonspendable

Consists of asscts inherently nonspendable in the current period either

because of their form or because they must be maintained intact;

including prepaid itcms, inventories, long-term protions of loans

rcceivable, financial assets held for resale, and endowment principal

Restricted

Consists of amounts subjcct to legal purpose restrictions imposed by

creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other

governments and enforced externally; or through constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation. :

Committed

Consists of amounts subject to a purpose constraint imposed by

formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making

authority prior to the end of the fiscal ycar, which requires the same

level of formal action to remove said constraint.

<> Assigned
Conusists of amounts subject to a purpose constraint representing an
intended use cstablished by the govemnment’s highest level of
decision-muking authority, or their designated body or official. The
purpose of the assignment must be narrower than the purpose of the
General Fund. Tn funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund
balance represcats the residual amount of fund balance.

> Unassigned _

Represents the residual classification of the government’s General

Fund, and could report a surplus or deficit. In funds other than the

General Fund, the unassigned classification should only be used to

report a delicil balunce resuling from overspending amounts

restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes.

*,
o

9,
L)

Total Coiunms

The total colurnns on the Financial Statements are presented only to facilitate
financial analysis. Data in thesc columns do not present financial posilion,
results of opcrations or changes in financial position in conformily with generally
accepted accounting principles. Such data is not comparable to a consolidation.
Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOT, DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#0618 P.001 /010

June 30, 2011

NOTE3: PROPERTY TAXES:

Northern Cambria School District assesses a real property tax on real estate in three
municipalities located in the County of Cambria. Taxable assesscd values for each of
the municipal areas is detcrmined by the asscssment office of thc County of Cambria.
The following is the basis for detcrmination of current real estate taxes for the school

year ended June 30, 2011.
Taxable Assessed
- Value
Township of Barr $15,242,681
Borough of Northern Cambria 22,039,917
Township of Susquchanna 11,335,182
Total Taxable Asscsscd Value $48,617.780
Numbcr of mills levied 47
Total tax levy collectible $ 2,285,036
Total tax lcvy collected (Net) 89.44% $ 2.043.788
‘The District levies the real estate tax as follows:
July 1- -Tevy Date :
July 1 — August 31 - 2% Discount Period

Septernber 1 — October 31 - Face Payment Period
November 1 — December 15 - 10% Penalty Period
December 16 - Lien Date

-20-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 4: CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2011 consist of the following:

Cash on Hand $ 500
Deposits with financial institution-

First National Bank : 2,468,524
Pennsylvania Local Government

Tnvestment Trust (PL.GIT) 2,252
Total Cash and Investments: $2,471.276

Deposits were with a contracted depository bank in interest bearing accounls which
were securcd at the balance sheet datc by FDIC coverage and by pledged securities.

The District invests in the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust
(PLGIT) was organized under an instrument of trust on February 1, 1981. The Trust
is anon-taxable investment fund established for local governments in Peunsylvania
under provisions of the Pennsylvanija Intergovernmental Cooperation Act and related
statutcs. The Trust invests in two basic types of federal securities: obligations backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States Government, and short-tecm
obligations of the United States Government or its agencics or instrumentalities
(which may or may not be backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
Government). The Trust also utilizes repurchase agrcements in investing in these
federal securities. The Trust enters into repurchase agreements only with dealcers in
U.S. Government securitics who are recognized as “primary dealers” by the Federal
Rescrve System or with commercial banks having assets in cxcess of $1billion. The
securities being purchased must have a market value at least equal to the amount of
the repurchase agreemcnt investment plus the accrued yield on the investment. This
market value is checked daily and the seller is requircd to provide additional
securities or money if the value of the securities declines below the amount reguired
under the repurchase agreement. All of the sccuritics are delivered to an account of
the Trust at the Trust’s custodian or at another custodian agreed to be the Trust and
the scller. The Trust does not engage in “reverse” repurchase agreements and does
not invest in any exotic derivatives. The Trust is authorizcd to invest in fll faith and
credit obligations of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and its agencies,
instrumentalities and political subdivisions. The Trust is also authorizcd to invest in
cettificates of deposit which arc insured by the Fcderal Dceposit Insurance
Corporation or which arc collateralized as provided by law.

The Trust may invest in certain investment companies registered under the
investment Company Act of 1940, provided the only investments of that company are
in instruments which are authorized investments of the Trusl, the investmenl
company is managed to maintain a constant net asset value and thc investment
company is rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 4: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Interest Rate Risk
'The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
mcans of managing its exposure to fair valoe losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The District has no investment policy that would limit its investrment choices to certain credit
ratings.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk .

For an investinent, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
countcrparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collatcral
security that are in posscssion of an outside party. The District believes it has no investment
subject to custodial credit risk.

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS:

The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether - the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations
and whether they are reported in the governmicent-wide or fund financial statcments.

Government-wide Statcmcnts

In the government-wide financial staternents, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets.
All capital assets are valued al historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is
unavailable, except for donated fixed assets, if any, which are recorded at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Estimated historica) cost was used to value the majority of the
assets acquired prior to June 30, 2003. The minimum capitalization threshold is any
individual item with a Lotal cost equal to or greater than $5,000.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net
Assets. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by Lype of asset is as follows:

- Buildings and ITmprovements  20-50 years

- Site Improvements 20 years
- Fixturcs and Equipment $§-20 years
- Library and 'Textbooks 6 years

Fund Financial Statements
In the fund financial statements, fixed assels used in governmental fund opcralions are

accounted for as capital vullay cxpenditures of the governmental fund upon gequigilion,
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accouniced for the same as in the
government-wide statements.
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NOTE 6:

ROBERT SHAFFER
NORTHERN CAMRRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANCE, CAPITAL ASSETS;

June 30, 2011

Capital asset activity for the year endedt June 30, 2011 was a8 folkywy;

Goveramental Activities
Capital Assets. Not Being Deprecisied
Land

Total Capital Asseis Not Reing
Depreciated

Captial Assets Being epreciated
Site huprovements
Buildings
Tguipment
Library and Texthowks
Vehicks

Total Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accurmwlated Depreciation For:
Site Improvements
Buildings
Fquipment
Library and Texthooks
Vehicles

Towl Accumutakd Depreciation
Total Capila!l Assets, Reing Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities, Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities
Capilal Aixels Being Depretinted
Fruipment

"T'otal Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Tess Accomulated Depreciation

‘Total Capital Assets Belng Deprecioed, Net

Dusiness-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

#0618 P.004 /010

Deprecintion expeuse was charged to lactions/prograunt of (be primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Suppont Service
Aduiniktralion
Student ‘Irunsponatito
Student Activitics
Unallocated

“Fotal Depreciation Expense-Govermmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Cafeteria

Beginaing Eoding

Balance Additions Deleti Balance
$38.834 $0 $0 $38.83¢
£38,834 30 S0 $38.834
$886.038 50 $0 $RA6.038
22571484 145,615 0 22.717,09%
1,122,572 5500 0 1,728,072
992,700 0 6 992,709
77.109 0 0 77,108
526.249,912 $151,115 $0 $26401,027
$696.313 $16,651 0 5712964
8.868.056 519,775 i] 0.387.831
1403.618 51,565 0 1455.183
978.170 14,539 0 992,700
55,512 5,889 0 61.401
$12,001,669 $608,319 S0 $12,510.088
$14.248.243 ($457,304) 30  $13.790939
$14.287,077° (3457,309) $0  $13.829.773
$393,939 $0 50 $393939
$393,939 50 50 $393.939
$227 561 £21,136 30 $248.697
$166,37% $21.136 $0 $145,242
$166,378 $21,136 30 $145,242
$60.821
841
804
8.876
651
536,426
$608,419

V1
$21.136
$21,136

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities

-
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL. DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 20101

NOTE 7: PENSIONS:

A. Plan Description

Substantially all full-time and qualifying employees of the School District are eligible 10
participale in the Pennsylvunia Public School Employces’ Retirement System (PSERS), a
governmental cost-sharing mulliple-employcr defined benefit plan that provides retirement
allowances and other benefits to members.  Membership in PSFRS is mandatory for
substantially all full-time public school employees in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
(Commonwealth).

The contribution policy is established by the authority of the Public Schoo! Employees’
Retirement Code (Act No. 96 of October 2, 1975, as arnended) (24 Pa. C.S. 8101-85 35) (the
Code).

Under the provisions of the Code, members are eligible for montbly retircment benefits upon
reaching (a) age 62 with atleast 1 year of credited scrvice; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of
credited service; or (¢) 35 or more years of scrvice regardless of age. In addition (o regular
retirement bencfits, PSERS also provides for disability retirement benefits, legislative
mandated ad hoc cost-ol-living adjustments and a health insurunce premiwn assistance
program to qualifying annuitants.

I’SERS issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by
writing to Public School Employces’ Retirement System, P.O. Box 125, Hamisburg, PA
17108-012s.

B. Funding Policy

The contribution policy is cstablished by the Code and requires contributions by active
members, employcrs, and the Commonwealth.

Active members contribute at 5.25% (membetship class TC) or at.6.50% (membership Class
TD) of the members compcasation. Members joining the system on or after July 22, 1983,
and who werc active or inactive as of July 1, 2001, contribute at 6.25% (membersbip class
TC) or at 7.50% (membership class TD). Members who joined the system after Junc 30,
2001 contribute at 7.50% (automatic mcmbcership class TD). Tor all ncw hires and for
members who elected Class TD incrubership, the higher contribution rates began with service
rendered on or aftcr January 1, 2002. Contributions required of employer’s are bascd upon
actuarial valuation. Tor the (iscal year ended June 30, 2011 the rate of employer contribution
was 5.64 percent of covered payroll.

C. Annual Pension Cost
The School District’s contributions to PSERS for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010,

and 2009, were $404,865, $352,242, and $356,832, respectively. Those amounts are
equal o the required conuibution for each year.
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NOTE 8:

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOU DISTICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

LONG-TERM DEBT:

During the year cnded June 30, 2011, Jong-term debt changed as follows:

#0618 P.006 /010

Bonds Lease Compensate OPEB Total
Payable Purchase Absences Obligation  Long-Term
Obligation Detn
Beginning of year $12,615.000 $64,792 $492,552 $1,143,404 $14,315.748
New Tssues $5,625,000 $0 $0 $0  $5,625,000
Retirements and Principal Payments  (5,830,000) (64,792) 0 0 (5389%4,792)
Decrease in Compensated Absences 0 0 (239,645) 0 (239,645)
Tncrease in OPEB Obligation 0 0 0 403,162 403,162
L'ad of Year $12,410,000 $0 $252,907 $1,546,566 $14,209473
Less: Current Portign (230,000) 0 0 0 (230,000)
Long-term liabilities $12,180,000 $0 $252,907 $1.546,566 $13.979473

The paymcnts of long-term debt arc to he funded by the Gencral Fund,

The future anuual payments required Lo asnortize the outstanding bonds payahle
as of June 30, 2011, including Lotsl interest payments are as {ollows:

Bonds Payable
Principal Interest Total

Year Ended June 30,
2012 $230,00 $312,298 $542,208
2013 430,000 361,774 791.774
2014 440,000 350,435 790,435
2015 460,000 337,138 797,138
2016 475.000 321,821 796.821
2017-2021 2,605,000 1,370,804 3,975,804
2022-2026 3,105,000 §70.430 3,975,430
2027-2031 3,800,000 440,069 4,240,069
2032 365,000 19,044 884,044
TOTAL $12,410,000  $4.383,813 $16,793,813
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE §: LONG-TERM DEBT: (continued)

On June 28, 2011, the School District issued General Obligation Bonds of 2011, in the
principal amount of $5,625,000. The purpose of the bond issues was to currently refund a
portion of the General Obligation Bonds of 2006 and pay the costs of issuing the 2011 bonds.
The principal halance of Series 2006 redeemed on Junc 28, 2011 was $5,465,000.

AtJune 30, 2011, Northern Cambria School District had three outstanding bond issues with a
total balance of $12,410,000. The bond issues were as follows:

Series of 2006, General Obligation Bonds in the original principal amount of $8,330,000,
datcd August 1, 2006, carrying varying interest rates from 3.60% to 4.50%, due serially with
final maturity on Scptember 1, 2031.

Balance Outstanding Junc 30, 2011 $ 1,990,000
Series of 2007, General Obligation Bonds in the original principal amount of $5,410,000 dated
February 15, 2007, carrying varying interest rates from 3.45% Lo 4.25%, due serially with final
maturity on Seplember 1, 2031.

Balance Outstanding June 30, 2011 $ 4,795,000

Series of 2011, General Obligation Bonds in the original principal amount of $5,625,000 dated
Tune 28, 2011, carrying intcrest ratcs [rom 1.00% to 4,05%. due serially with final maturity on

September 1, 2027.
Balance Qutstanding June 30, 2011 $ 5.625.000
Tolal Bonds Payable
June 30, 2011 $12.410.000

LEASE PURCHASE OBLIGATION:

On May 30, 2001, the School District entered into a Lease Purchase Agreement with Old
National Bunk Leasing in the principal amount of $511,062 for the purposc of acquiring
various cncrgy saving lighting cquipment al the Elementary School, Middle School and the
High School. Payments are to be made in twenty (20) semi-annual amounts of $33,860 each,
which includes principal and intcrest, duc on the first scmi-annual month beginning Septcmber
13, 2001. The term of the Agreement is ten (10) years with final payment scheduled for March
13, 2011. The lease is paid off as of June 30, 2011.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT: (continued)

ACCUMULATED COMPENSATED ABSENCES:

Compensated absences consist of future vacation, sick and other leave benefits, which
represent an accrued liability to the District. At June 30, 2011 the District had accamulated
compensation absenccs in the amount of $252,907 which is presented as a long-term
liability in the Statement of Net Asset.

NOTE 9: POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Description

Effective July 1, 2008, the School District adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post Retirement Benefits Other Fhan
Penyions. In addition to the relevant disclosurcs within this note relatcd to the implementation
of GASB Statcment No. 45, the financial statements reflect a long-term liability and related
expenses of $1,546,566 in total liabilities resulting from the adoption. The School District
maintains a single employer defined bencfit plan 10 provide post retircment healthcare benefits
to School District employees who have retire with 30 years of PSERS service or upon
superannuation retirement. Such benefits are availablc to retiree dependents until the retired
employce reaches age 65, provided the retired employee provides payment equal to the
premium determined for the purposc of COBRA.

Funding Policy

The School District has clected to finance post employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
'The School District recognizes expenditures for post craployment group insurance when
payments are made to the Plan Administralor. These financial statements assume that pay-as-
you-go funding will continue.

Annual OPEB Cost and Nct OPEB Obligation

The School District’s annual cost for other post employment retircment benefils (OPEB) is
calculated based on (he annual required contribution (ARC) of the School District, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projectex to cover normal cost each year
and amortizc any unfunded actuarial Habilities (or funding excess) over a period of 9 years.
The following illustrates the components of the School District’s annual OPEB cost for the
year, the amount actually contributcd to the Plan, and changes in the School District’s net

OPEB obligations:

Amnual Required Contribution $803,994

Interest on OPEB Obligation 51,454

Adjustment to Annual Required Coniribution (157,304
Amnual OPEB Cost 698,144

Contributions Made (294,982)
Estimated Incrcase in Net OPEB Obligation 403,162

Net OPEB Obligation-Beginning of Ycar 1,143,404
Nct OPEB Obligation-FEnd of Year $1,546.566
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTEY:  POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (continued)

The School District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as follows:

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of Annual OPEB ~ Net OPEB Obligation-
Ended OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed End of Year
06/30/2011 $698,144 42.2% $1,546,566
06/30/2010 . 747972 28.4% 1,143,404
06/30/2009 803,994 24.7% 605,164

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of Tuly 1, 2008, the most rccent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not fanded. The
actuarial accrued liubility for benefits equaled $4,342,460, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrucd liability (UAAL) of $4,342,460. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the Plan) cqualed $6,563,665, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll equaled 66.16%.

Actuarial valvations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assurnptions- about the probability of occurrence of eveats far into the future. Examples
include assumptions about the future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required
contributions of the employcr are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new cstimates are made about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, is Lo prescat multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan
assets is increasing or decrcasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
henefits. However, because the School District maintains no Plan assets, information relative
to Plan asset required disclosures is not applicable.

Actuarial Mcthods and Assumplions

Projections ol bencfits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the
Plan as understood by the School District and Plan rembers) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern ol sharing of benefit costs
between the School District and Plan members to that point, There are no legal or contractual
funding limitations (hat would potentially allcct the projection of hencfits for financial
accounting purposes. The actuarial methods and assurptions uscd include techniquces that are
designed to reducc the cffects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent
with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTEY9: POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFTTS (continued)

In the actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2008, the entry age normal cost method was uscd.
Because the School District funds its OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis, the Plan has no assets
(investment) legally held cxclusively for paying the post-rctirement medical benefits.
Actuarial assumptions included an interest rate of 4.5% per annum, medical inflation of 8.5%
in the first year gradually decreasing by 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5% in 2015 and
later.

NOTE 10: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:

Grant Programs

'The School District participatcs in both state and federally assisted grant programs. These
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.
The School District is potentially liable for any expenditures which may be disallowed
pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items
of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditurcs.

NOTE 11: FUND BALANCE RECLASSIFICATION

Beginning July 1, 2010, the District adopted GASB Statemeat No.54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which redefined the dcfinition of a special revenue
fund. As a result, the athletic activilies are now included in the general fund rathcr than a
separate fund. Also, the capital reserve fund is now included in the capital projects fund. The
reclassification of the beginning fund balance is as follows:

General Fund Capital Project Fund

Fund Balance, as previously stated $1,894,629 $147,150
Adoption of GASB 54 5,020 213,208
Fund balancc, as rcstated $1,899,649 $360,358
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL,

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3, 2011

#0619 P.001 /D12

Varwance With
Actual Firal Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Positive
Originial Fiml Bayis (Negative)
Total Local Sources .
T.ocal Sowrces $3,153,216 $3,153,216 $3.300,118 $146,902
State Sowrces 12,228,946 12,228,946 10,319,869 (1,209,077)
Federal Sonrces 820,843 §20,843 2,241,775 1,420,932
TOTAL REVENUES $16,203,008 $16,203,005 $16,361,762 $158,757
EXPENDITURES
Repular Programs $7,871,920 $7,450,138 57,436,400 $13,738
Special Prograns 1,828,398 2.098,947 2,025.830 73,117
Vocatinnal Proprams 410,190 362,856 277,638 85,218
Other lustructional Progruns 97,128 . 160,896 112,803 48,093
Pre-Kindlergarien 124,243 127,630 122484 5,146
Fupil Pessonnel Services 539,833 574,296 568.398 5,898
Instrocdonal Staff Scrvices 373,199 489,658 489,053 60s
Adunimistrative Services 870,971 917.095 B66.684 50,411
Pupil Health 237,926 234,969 234,969 0
Busingss Services 234,256 207,301 207,232 69
()peration and Maintenance of Plant Scrvices 1,243,554 1,333,046 1.329,110 3936
Studeat Lransportation Scrvices 1LILLORT 1,181.217 1,181,217 0
Ceniral and Other Suppott Seevices 295,076 258,994 158,991 100.003
Other Suppont Scrvices 2,500 3,029 3,029 0
Studeny Activities 425,201 333,308 363,8%9 (30.581)
Commusity Services 0 10,800 10,800 0
Debt Service 956,847 967,696 960,772 6,924
Refund of Prior Year Receipts 0 7,453 7,453 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURFS $16,622,339 $16,719,329 $16.356,752 $362.577
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (8419.324) ($516,324) $5,010 $521.334
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USED)
Tnterlond Tronsfess In 30 30 30 $0
Imtevtund ‘T'ransfers Out {100,000) (103,000) (100,000) 3,000
Budpetary Reserve (100,000) 4] 0 0
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ($200,000) ($103,000) (£100,000) $3.000
Net Change in Tauwd Balance (5619.324) ($619,324) (394.990) $524,334
Fund Balance - July 1, 2010, as restated 1,899,649 1,899.649 1,899,649 0
Fund Balance - June 30, 2011 $1.280,325 $1,280,325 $1.804,659 $524,334

“Ihe notes to fimancinl statements are an itegeal part of these statemens,
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Valuation
Date

07/01/2008

8145363435 ROBERT SHAFFER

NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS —
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) —
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN

Ungudited
Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued
Value of Liability (AAL) - Unfunded
Asscts Entry Age AAL (UAAL)
(a) (b) (b-a)
0- . $4,342,460 $4,342,460

The notes to financial statcments are an integral part of these statements.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS ~-
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN

Unauditcd
Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution From Employer Contributed
063072011 $69%,144 $294,983 42.2%
06/30/2010 747,972 209,732 28.4%
06/30/2009 - 803,994 198,830 24.7%

The notes to financial statements are an intcpral part of these statcments.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) -
POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS PLAN
Unaudited

The information presented on the required supplementary schedules on page 31 and 32 was dctermined as
part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. n futurc periods, the schedule will present multi-year
trend information about whether the unfandcd actuarial accrued liability is increasing or decrcasing.
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation Date 07/01/2008
Actuarial Cost Mcthod Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Dollar Method

Remaining Amortization Period 9 Years

Asset Valuation Method Not Applicable (the Plan is Unfunded)
Health Care Cost Trend 2010 7.5%

2011 7.0%

2012 6.5%

2013 6.0%

2014 5.5%

2015 and Thercafter 5.0%

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 4.5%
Pre-Retirement Mortality Assumed Rates uscd in the PSERS Defined Bcncﬁf
Plan Actuarial Valuation
Post-Retirement Mortality Assumed Rates used in the PSERS Defincd Benefit

Plan Actuarial Valuation

Actuarial valuations involve estimates ol the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future. Accordingly, actuarially determined amounts are subjcct to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new cstimates are made about the future. Actuarial
calculations reflect a long-tcrm perspective, and, consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that arc designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued ,
linbilitics. Actuarial calculations are bascd on the types of bencfits provided under the terms of the plan at the
time of the valuations, and on the pattern of cost-sharing betwcen the employer and plan membcrs at that
point.
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal graot
activity of Northem Cambria School District and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2: DONATED COMMODITIES

Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule at fair market value of the
commuditics received and subsequently used. At June 30, 2011, the district had food
commoditics totaling $6,976 in inventory.

4) Total amount of commoditics received from the Department of Agriculture.
bh) Beginning inventory at July 1, 2010.

¢) Total amount of commodities used.

d) Ending inventory at Junc 30, 2011.
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Robert A. Shaffer

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
Allegheny Building
901 Onk Street
Johnsiown, Pennsylvania 15902
PHONE (814) 536-6625
FAX ($14) 536-3435

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of School Directors November 21, 2011
Northern Cambria School District
Northern Cambria, Pennsylvania

T have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-fype uctivities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remainiog fund information of Northern Cambria School District as of and for the
year cnded June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise Northern Cambria School District’s busic financial
slatements and have issued my report dated November 21, 2011. I conducted my audit in accordance with
auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered Northern Cambria School District’s internal controt over
financial reporting as a basis for designing my audiling procedurcs for the purposc of expressing my opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of cxpressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the
Northern Cambria School District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, { do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Northern Cambria School District’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A deficicncy in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstalcments on a limely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, ora combination of deficiencies. in
internal control such that there is a rcasonable pussibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on 2 timely basis.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencics in internal control over linancial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencics or material weaknesses, I did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reponting that I consider to be ruaterial weaknesses, as defined
above,

A7-



DEC.27.2011 12:02 8145363435 ROBERT SHAFFER #0619 P.009 /012

Compliance and Other Maiters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northern Cambria School District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemcats, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of inancial statement amouants. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with these provisions was not an objective of my audit and accordingly, I do not express such
an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matiers that are required
to be reported under Governmenr Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and usc of the School Board of Directors,
managemeant, the Pennsylvania Departmeant of Educativn, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entitics
and is not intended 10 be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Rttt b Shen
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A deficiency in interval control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requircment of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the frst
paragraph of this section and was not designed to idenlily all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be deficiencics. significant deficiencies or imaterial weaknesses. 1did not identify any deficiencies
in intcrnal control over compliance that T consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Schoo) Bourd of Directors, management, the
Pennsylvania Department of Education, federal awanding agencies and pass-through entities and is not
intended to be and should not be uscd by anyone other than specified parties.

/ﬁzd,&&&m«
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NORTHERN CAMBRIA SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section I - Summary of Auditer’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: UNQUALIFIED

Internal control over finuncial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identitied? ___Yes. X No
Significant Deficiencies(s) identified
Not considered to be material weakness(es)? ____Yes___X None reported

Noncompliance matcrial to financial statements noted? Yes_ X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs;
Material weakness(es) identificd? — Yes_ X No
Significant Deficiencies(s) identificd
Not considered to be material weakness(es)? __ Yes X None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance '
For major programs: UNQUALIJFIED

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
To be repored in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? Yes_ X No

Programs tested as major programs include:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Propram or Cluster
84.394 ARRA - Fiscal Stabilization-Basic Ed
84410 ARRA-Education Jobs Fund

Special Education (TDEA) Closter
84.027 IDEA -Part B
®4.391A ARRA - IDEA - Part B

Dollars threshold used to distinguish
Retween Type A and Type B proprams: $300.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes___No

Section 1T - Financial Statement Findings No Findings

Section IH - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs No Findings or Questioned Costs
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